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Dear Shareholders, 

Dear Readers, 

The VIG Group has achieved 
satisfying interim results for 2021. 
Business development is continu-
ing at the level before the corona-
virus pandemic, and our custom-
ers and business partners re-
mained loyal to us even during the 
pandemic, which I see as recog-
nition of the dedicated service 
provided by all our companies and 
their teams. Our efforts to promote 
digital services also paid off for 
the Group and will provide further leverage for our opera-
tions in the future.  

Our business development for the 1st half of 2021 shows 
that growth was achieved in both premium volume and the 
result before taxes versus the same period in the previous 
year. The combined ratio was also further improved. These 
favourable results were achieved in an environment that re-
mains challenging, as the pandemic continued during the 
1st half of 2021 and affected our everyday lives to varying 
degrees. As the largest international insurance group in 
Central and Eastern Europe, we can see how differently the 
situation is being dealt with in the individual countries of our 
region, and how important it is to act locally and react inde-
pendently and appropriately based on local conditions. This 
is precisely what our business model, based on the values 
of diversity, customer proximity and responsibility, allows us 
to do. We have always given our local Group companies 
the entrepreneurial freedom they need to achieve success 
by tailoring their insurance solutions to meet the needs of 
the local market, thereby contributing to the sustained posi-
tive performance of the Group as a whole.  

To continue this success story for the Group, we intensively 
analysed the trends and developments in the insurance 
industry, and worked together with the CEOs of our Group 
companies to develop our “VIG 25” strategic programme, 
which runs until 2025. The areas our entrepreneurial activ-
ities will be focusing on until 2025 include further optimi-
sation of our business model to increase efficiency, streng-
thening alternative distribution channels and expanding 
services. We intend to make use of technical opportunities 
and further promote the digital transformation in order to 

effectively address changing market conditions, increased 
customer expectations and the ongoing need for risk cover-
age. Our goal is to further expand our leading market posi-
tion in the CEE region, in which we also include Austria, and 
create sustainable value for all our stakeholder groups. We 
aim to increase our premium volume to around EUR 12.3 
billion by 2025 and further improve our combined ratio to a 
value below 95%.  

“VIG 25” includes specific ESG-related goals that under-
score our efforts to combine economic objectives with 
social and environmental factors, which are of great impor-
tance in our Group far beyond the sustainability strategy 
explicitly introduced in 2017. The recent severe weather 
events that have occurred provide clear evidence of the im-
portance of every step taken to protect climate and en-
vironment. Our promise of “protecting what matters” not 
only applies to the people and companies we insure, but 
we see it as an obligation to help ensure a future worth living 
on our planet. In my view, our “VIG 25” strategic programme 
and its goals put the Group on the right path to allow us to 
tailor our actions more flexibly, individually and sustainably 
to the benefit of our stakeholders. 

Yours sincerely, 

Elisabeth Stadler 

Letter from the Chairwoman of the Managing Board 
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Business development and economic position 

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT 

Austria recorded a 6.3% year-on-year decrease in GDP in 
2020 due to the pandemic, a historic low for economic 
performance in Austria. The expectations for a recovery in 
2021 were accordingly high. Due to another wave of the pan-
demic and the resulting containment measures, however, the 
1st quarter of 2021 also recorded a decrease of 5.5%, with 
losses particularly large in winter tourism. The loosening of 
measures starting in May 2021 was the forerunner of a 
significant recovery. Exports and investments were already 
showing signs of a recovery since the beginning of the year, 
and the opening of the services sector in the 2nd quarter of 
2021 is expected to increase private consumption by 15.9% 
year-on-year, thereby contributing signifycantly to an upswing 
after reporting a decrease of 7.8% in the 1st quarter of 2021. 

Unlike Austria, Central and Eastern Europe recorded better 
economic performance than expected in the 1st quarter, it 
was nevertheless also negative, averaging -0.7% for the 
region compared to the same period in the previous year. 
The largest decreases were recorded in the Czech Republic, 
which saw a drop of 2.4%, and Hungary, with a decrease 
of 2.1%. Serbia and Slovenia, on the other hand, already 
showed positive growth in the 1st quarter of 2021 (+1.7% 
and +1.6%). The region is expected to record GDP growth 
of 11.4% in the 2nd quarter of 2021. 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

VIG Insurance Group wrote EUR 5,772.9 million in pre-
miums in the 1st half of 2021, an increase of 3.5% compared 
to the same period in the previous year (1st half of 2020: 
EUR 5,577.4 million). The increase was mainly due to the 
good performance in other property and casualty insurance 
and the motor lines of business. 

Expenses for claims and insurance benefits less reinsurers’ 
share were EUR 3,633.5 million in the first six months of 2021 
(1st half of 2020: EUR 3,600.0 million) corresponding to an 
increase of 0.9% compared to the same period in the 
previous year. 

Acquisition and administrative expenses less reinsurance 
commissions rose to EUR 1,237.1 million in the 1st half of 
2021 due to higher commission expenses (1st half of 2020: 
EUR 1,136.9 million). 

PREMIUM SHARE BY LINES OF BUSINESS IN THE 1ST HALF OF 2021 

The Group result before taxes rose 25.0% in the 1st half of 
2021 to EUR 251.4 million (1st half of 2020: EUR 201.2 mil-
lion). The significant year-on-year increase was due to the 
goodwill impairment of EUR 118.1 million performed in the 
first half of 2020. This was partially offset by a decrease in 
the financial result and provisions for Covid-19 and adverse 
weather events in the first half of the current year, among 
other things. 

The Group combined ratio after reinsurance (not including 
investment income) improved compared to the same peri- 

Health 6.4%

(6.3%)
Other property and casualty

34.2% (33.8%)

Life – single premium

8.0% (8.8%)

MTPL 14.5% 

(14.4%)

Values for 1st half of 2020 in parentheses

Motor own damage

12.7% (12.2%)

Life – regular premium

24.2% (24.5%)

Interim management report 

1st half of 2021 at a glance 

• Premiums increased 3.5% to EUR 5,772.9 million

• Result before taxes rose to EUR 251.4 million, representing

a significant increase of 25.0%

• The combined ratio is 95.2%
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ode in the previous year to 95.2% primarily due to an 

improved claims development (1st half of 2020: 95.5%). 

Group investments including cash and cash equivalents 

were EUR 37,534.0 million as of 30 June 2021 (31 Decem-

ber 2020: EUR 36,646.3 million). The year-on-year increase 

was primarily due to the increase in cash and cash equiva-

lents resulting from the issue of additional debt and hybrid 

capital. 

BREAKDOWN OF INVESTMENTS AS OF 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 

VIG Insurance Group earned a financial result of EUR 353.6 

million in the 1st half of 2021 (1st half of 2020: EUR 388.0 

million). This corresponds to a decrease of 8.9%, which was 

mainly due to a reduction in realised gains and losses. 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS BY SEGMENT 

Austria 

The Austrian VIG insurance companies generated EUR 2,279.7 

million in premiums written in the first six months of 2021, 

representing a year-on-year decrease of 1,6 % (1st half of 

2020: EUR 2.316,2 million). This was primarily due to a de-

crease in premiums in the life lines of business. 

PREMIUMS WRITTEN BY SEGMENT 

  1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 ∆ in % ∆ absolute 

in EUR million         

Austria 2,279.7 2,316.2 -1.6% -36.4 

Czech Republic 945.6 879.5 7.5% 66.0 

Slovakia 367.5 383.2 -4.1% -15.8 

Poland 640.7 590.5 8.5% 50.2 

Romania 266.4 229.1 16.3% 37.3 

Baltic States 258.7 251.0 3.1% 7.7 

Hungary 175.9 153.7 14.5% 22.2 

Bulgaria 114.2 111.7 2.3% 2.6 

Turkey/Georgia 126.2 127.4 -0.9% -1.1 

Remaining 
CEE1 252.9 231.3 9.3% 21.5 

Other Markets2 142.9 142.0 0.7% 1.0 

Central 
Functions3 1,014.8 930.6 9.1% 84.2 

Consolidation -812.6 -768.8 5.7% -43.9 

Total 5,772.9 5,577.4 3.5% 195.6 
     

1 Remaining CEE: Albania incl. Kosovo, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Croatia, Moldova, North Macedonia, 

Serbia, Ukraine 

2 Other Markets: Germany, Liechtenstein 

3 Central Functions: VIG Holding, VIG Re, Wiener Re, VIG Fund, corporate IT service providers and 

intermediate holding companies 

RESULT BEFORE TAXES BY SEGMENT 
  1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 ∆ in % ∆ absolute 

in EUR million         

Austria 105.8 104.0 1.8% 1.9 

Czech Republic 96.9 108.0 -10.3% -11.1 

Slovakia 30.0 28.8 4.2% 1.2 

Poland 33.8 35.5 -4.9% -1.7 

Romania 9.6 9.5 0.7% 0.1 

Baltic States 9.9 8.4 17.6% 1.5 

Hungary 5.1 4.8 5.2% 0.3 

Bulgaria 13.9 -48.4 n/a 62.3 

Turkey/Georgia 5.7 -3.5 n/a 9.2 

Remaining 
CEE1 15.3 -24.9 n/a 40.2 

Other Markets2 16.5 15.3 7.9% 1.2 

Central 
Functions3 -90.6 -36.9 n/a -53.7 

Consolidation -0.5 0.5 n/a -1.0 

Total 251.4 201.2 25.0% 50.2 
     

1 Remaining CEE: Albania incl. Kosovo, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Croatia, Moldova, North Macedonia, 

Serbia, Ukraine 

2 Other Markets: Germany, Liechtenstein 

3 Central Functions: VIG Holding, VIG Re, Wiener Re, VIG Fund, corporate IT service providers and 

intermediate holding companies 

  

Property 7.1% (7.1%) 

Loans 6.6% (7.0%)

Other investments

11.1% (7.5%)

Shares 4.7% (4.2%)
Bonds 69.0%

(72.7%)

Affiliated companies

1.5% (1.5%)

Values as of 31 December 2020 in parentheses
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After adjusting for the effects of single premium life insur-
ance, on the other hand, the Austria segment recorded a 
1.5% increase in premiums written. 

The result before taxes increased 1.8% year-on-year to 
EUR 105.8 million due to an improved combined ratio and 
a higher underwriting result in the life lines of business (1st 
half of 2020: EUR 104.0 million). The combination of these 
two effects overcompensated for the reduction in realised 
gains from the disposal of investments. 

The combined ratio improved to 93.7% in the first six 
months of 2021, primarily due to a better claims ratio (1st 
half of 2020: 94.4%).  

Czech Republic 

The VIG insurance companies in the Czech Republic 
segment wrote EUR 945.6 million in premiums in the 1st half 
of 2021, an increase of 7.5% compared to the same period 
in the previous year (1st half of 2020: EUR 879.5 million). 
This was primarily due to good performance in the motor 
lines of business and other property and casualty insurance. 
Health insurance also recorded double-digit growth rates.  

The result before taxes was EUR 96.9 million in the 1st half 
of the current year, corresponding to a year-on-year de-
crease of 10.3% (1st half of 2020: EUR 108.0 million). This 
was mainly caused by a decrease in the result recorded in 
the life insurance lines of business due to higher acquisition 
costs in connection with the increase in new business. 

The combined ratio was at a very good level of 91.5% in the 
1st half of 2021 due to an improvement in the claims ratio 
resulting primarily from the absence of large losses (1st half 
of 2020: 94.1%).  

Slovakia 

The VIG insurance companies in the Slovakia segment wrote 
EUR 367.5 million in premiums in the first six months of the 
current year (1st half of 2020: EUR 383.2 million). This cor-
responds to a year-on-year decrease of 4.1%, which was 
primarily due to a decrease in premiums from single pre-
mium life insurance.  

After adjusting for this, the segment recorded an increase 
of 1.5%. 

The result before taxes rose 4.2% in the 1st half of 2021 to  
EUR 30.0 million (1st half of 2020: EUR 28.8 million). The im-
provement was due to an improvement in the combined ratio. 

The combined ratio improved to an excellent 89.0% in the 
first six months of 2021 due to a reduction in high recurrent 
claims in the motor lines of business and an improved 
claims development in the other property and casualty line 
of business (1st half of 2020: 89.2%). 

Poland 

The VIG insurance companies in the Poland segment wrote 
EUR 640.7 million in premiums in the 1st half of 2021, 
representing a year-on-year increase of 8.5% (1st half of 
2020: EUR 590.5 million). This increase was mainly due to 
positive performance in the other property and casualty, 
single premium life insurance and motor third party liability 
lines of business. 

The result before taxes fell in the first six months of the cur-
rent year due to a 4.9% decrease in the financial result to 
EUR 33.8 million (1st half of 2020: EUR 35.5 million).  

The combined ratio was 94.4% in the 1st half of 2021 (1st 
half of 2020: 94.1%).  

Romania 

The VIG insurance companies in the Romania segment 
wrote EUR 266.4 million in premiums in the 1st half of 2021, 
representing an increase of 16.3% (1st half of 2020: EUR 
229.1 million). This increase was primarily due to good per-
formance in the single premium life insurance and motor 
own damage lines of business. 

The Romania segment recorded a result before taxes of 
EUR 9.6 million in the 1st half of 2021, which was largely at 
the level of the same periode in the previous year (1st half of 
2020: EUR 9.5 million).  

The combined ratio was 99.9%, mainly due to higher claims 
ratios (1st half of 2020: 96.4%).  
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Baltic States 

The Baltic States segment consists of the countries 
Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania. 

The VIG insurance companies in the Baltic States wrote 
EUR 258.7 million in premiums in the first six months of 
2021, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.1% (1st half 
of 2020: EUR 251.0 million). The increase in premiums was 
mainly due to growth in the life insurance lines of business 
and good performance in health insurance. 

The result before taxes in the Baltic States segment 
increased year-on-year to EUR 9.9 million (1st half of 2020: 
EUR 8.4 million). The increase was primarily due to an im-
provement in the financial result. 

Due to increases in claims frequencies and large losses, the 
combined ratio was 96.4% in the 1st half of 2021 (1st half of 
2020: 94.8%). 

Hungary 

Premiums written in the Hungary segment rose 14.5% in 
the 1st half of 2021 to EUR 175.9 million (1st half of 2020: 
EUR 153.7 million). The increase was primarily the result of 
strong premium growth for single-premium life insurance. 

The result before taxes increased 5.2% year-on-year to 
EUR 5.1 million due to the significant growth in business 
volume (1st half of 2020: EUR 4.8 million).  

The combined ratio was 96.9% in the 1st half of 2021, 
mainly as the result of increased IT expenses in connection 
with digitalisation measures and mobile work (1st half of 
2020: 94.4%). 

Bulgaria 

EUR 114.2 million in premiums were written in the Bulgaria 
segment in the 1st half of 2021. This increase of 2.3% com-
pared to the same period in the previous year (1st half of 
2020: EUR 111.7 million) was due to positive performance 
in the motor lines of business and growth in single premium 
life insurance. 

The result before taxes improved year-on-year to EUR 13.9 
million in the Bulgaria segment in the 1st half of 2021 (1st half 
of 2020: loss of EUR 48.4 million). It must be noted that the 
result in the same period of the previous year was negatively 
affected by a goodwill impairment of EUR 59.8 million. 

The combined ratio improved compared to the same period 
in the previous year to an excellent 87.4% in the 1st half of 
2021, mainly due to a lower expense ratio resulting from a 
decrease in allowances for receivables and an increase in 
reinsurance commissions (1st half of 2020: 90.9%).  

Turkey/Georgia 

The VIG insurance companies in the Turkey/Georgia segment 
recorded premiums written of EUR 126.2 million in the first six 
months of 2021. This slight year-on-year decrease of 0.9% (1st 
half of 2020: EUR 127.4 million) was caused by negative ex-
change rate effects. After adjusting for these effects, the seg-
ment recorded a significant increase in premiums of 29.2%. 

The result before taxes rose to EUR 5.7 million in the Tur-
key/Georgia segment in the 1st half of 2021 (1st half of 2020: 
loss of EUR 3.5 million). The result for the same period in 
the previous year was decreased by a goodwill impairment 
of EUR 13.3 million in Georgia. 

The combined ratio was 99.8% in the 1st half of 2021, 
mainly due to increased losses in the motor lines of busi-
ness and fire and natural hazards insurance in Turkey (1st 
half of 2020: 84.5%). 

Remaining CEE 

The Remaining CEE segment includes the countries 
Albania incl. Kosovo, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Croatia, North 
Macedonia, Moldova, Serbia and Ukraine. 

The VIG insurance companies in the Remaining CEE 
countries wrote EUR 252.9 million in premiums in the 1st half 
of 2021. The year-on-year increase of 9.3% was mainly due 
to good performance in other property and casualty 
insurance and the increase in premiums from single 
premium life insurance. 
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The Remaining CEE segment recorded a result before taxes 
of EUR 15.3 million in the 1st half of 2021 (1st half of 2020: 
loss of EUR 24.9 million). The result for the same period in 
the previous year was reduced by a goodwill impairment of 
EUR 45.0 million in Croatia. 

The combined ratio continued at a very good level of 91.5% 
in the 1st half of 2021 (1st half of 2020: 90.4%). The small 
increase was the result of isolated large losses in Croatia 
and Bosnia-Herzegovina and a negative development in the 
motor lines of business in North Macedonia. 

Other Markets 

The Other Markets segment includes the countries of Ger-
many and Liechtenstein. 

The VIG insurance companies in the Other Markets seg-
ment wrote EUR 142.9 million in premiums in the first six 
months of 2021 (1st half of 2020: EUR 142.0 million). The 
small year-on-year increase of 0.7% was mainly due to 
good performance in the other property and casualty line of 
business in Germany.  

The result before taxes increased 7.9% to EUR 16.5 million 
in the 1st half of 2021 due to an increase in the financial 
result and improvement in the combined ratio (1st half of 
2020: EUR 15.3 million). 

The combined ratio was an outstanding 76.5% in the 1st half 
of 2021 due to an improvement in the claims ratio in the 
other property and casualty line of business (1st half of 2020: 
77.5%).  

Central Functions 

The Central Functions segment includes VIG Holding (in-
cluding the branches in Northern Europe), VIG Re (including 
the branches in Germany and France), Wiener Re, the VIG 
Fund, corporate IT service providers and intermediate hold-
ing companies. 

Premiums written in the Central Functions segment rose 
9.1% in the 1st half of 2021 to EUR 1,014.8 million (1st half 
of 2020: EUR 930.6 million). This was mainly the result of 
an increase in premiums generated by VIG company VIG 
Re entering new business areas (Western Europe) for active 

reinsurance and an increase in corporate and large cus-
tomer business in VIG Holding. 

The Central Functions segment reported a loss of EUR 90.6 
million in the first six months of the current year (1st half of 2020: 
loss of EUR 36.9 million). The decrease was due to a variety of 
provisions related to advers weather events, COVID-19 and 
strategic projects and an increase in scheduled amortisation 
resulting from a reduction in the useful life of software.  

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BY BALANCE SHEET UNIT 

Further information on business development by balance 
sheet units is provided in the additional disclosures in ac-
cordance with the Austrian Insurance Supervision Act (VAG) 
starting on page 45. 

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Information on related party transactions is provided in the 
notes to the consolidated financial statements starting on 
page 43. 

Expected development and risks of the Group 

SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

Economic recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic continued 
in the 1st half of 2021. The general VIG Insurance Group risk 
profile remains unchanged. Market risks and underwriting 
risks continue to be the most important risks for the 2nd half 
of 2021. Further information on the significant business risks 
to which the VIG Insurance Group is exposed and the effects 
of the COVID-19 pandemic is available in the risk report 
section in the VIG Insurance Group Annual Report for 2020 
and in the Solvency and Financial Condition Report for 2020. 

Austria and Central and Eastern Europe also experienced 
many extreme weather events during and after the 1st half of 
2021. VIG Insurance Group expects the intensity and fre-
quency of storms to continue increasing as a result of climate 
change and is therefore devoting more attention to the issue. 
Furthermore, VIG Insurance Group will continue to focus 
strongly on cyber risk, which will become even more im-
portant in the future due to the rapid progress of digitalisation. 
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The VIG Insurance Group regulatory solvency ratio was 
238.1% on 31 December 2020. Due to the economic 
recovery and an issue of supplementary hybrid capital (tier 
1 restricted) with a nominal value of EUR 300 million, the 
VIG Insurance Group solvency ratio increased in the 1st half 
of 2021 to 267% on 30 June 2021. 

The Group’s excellent level of regulatory capital and A+ 
rating from Standard & Poor’s demonstrate its high risk-
bearing capacity. 

VIG Insurance Group will maintain its current investment policy 
of holding a conservative, security-oriented asset allocation. 

EXPECTED DEVELOPMENT – OUTLOOK 

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 

Erste Group analysts expect the recovery to continue in 
the 2nd half of 2021 and forecast a GDP growth rate of 3.8% 
for Austria in 2021 and 4.3% in 2022. A broad global 
recovery is expected to continue contributing to good 
export performance, and the Erste Group analyst outlook 
also continues to view private consumption and the 
services sector as important drivers. They are also the 
reason for further recovery in Central and Eastern Europe 
during the course of 2021. The relative effects of the EU 
rescue fund (RRF) alone could have a greater impact here, 
although these are not expected to reach their full effect 
until 2022. Regional growth of 5.8% and 5.1% is expected 
for the 2nd and 3rd quarters of 2021, respectively, and the 
Erste Group expects an overall GDP growth rate of 5.1% 
for the region in 2021. 

The risks for the expected recovery in both Austria and the 
CEE region are essentially the risk of new waves of infec-
tions that might be impossible to counteract with further 
progress in vaccinations, thereby making containment 
measures necessary. In addition, the question remains as 
to whether inflation will turn out to be a temporary phenom-
enon or not. The Erste Group analysts expect the base 
effects to flatten out in the 2nd half of 2021 – depending on 
further changes in energy prices – resulting in an average 
inflation rate of 2.0% for Austria in 2021.  

These base effects, reinforced by a surprisingly tight labour 
market, are why an inflation rate of 3.4% is also expected 
for Central and Eastern Europe in 2021. Even though the 
unemployment rate in the region rose from 4.6% in 2019 to 
5.2% in 2020 and is expected to rise to 5.6% in 2021, this 
does not appear to be having a sustained dampening effect 
on consumer prices. The expected inflation rate for 2021 in 
the Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland and Romania would 
therefore be above the local tolerance thresholds, so that 
further central bank reactions cannot be ruled out.   

Stock markets in Austria and Central and Eastern Europe 
have largely reflected this recovery, which is now priced in 
to a large extent. The Erste Group analysts therefore expect 
stock market momentum to weaken. Although market 
sentiment should remain generally positive, potential risks 
are being increasingly perceived as dampening. Central 
bank communication will also be particularly important for 
capital markets. 

OUTLOOK FOR VIG INSURANCE GROUP 

As a market leader in Central and Eastern Europe, VIG In-
surance Group with its more than 25,000 employees is in 
an excellent position to take advantage of the opportunities 
available in this region and the long-term growth options 
they offer. To this end, it is implementing its “VIG 25” stra-
tegic programme, which was developed and initiated to-
gether with the CEOs of the VIG insurance companies 
based on trends and developments in the insurance 
industry, and is aimed at generating a premium volume of 
around EUR 12.3 billion by the end of 2025 and a combined 
ratio of less than 95%. Based on the new strategy and cur-
rent conditions, a range of 150 to 200% was specified for 
the VIG Group solvency ratio without taking transitional 
measures into account. It was also specified that the oper-
ating return on equity (operating RoE) would be included as 
a new key figure in external communications starting with 
full year 2021 results. The dividend policy, which foresees a 
distribution in the range of 30 to 50% of Group net profits, 
will remain unchanged. The dividend per share will continue  
to be aligned with the Company’s performance. In addition 
to creating sustainable value and achieving ESG-related 
goals, one of the key objectives of the programme is to ex- 
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pand the leading market position in Central and Eastern 
Europe, with the aim of achieving at least a top 3 position 
in each CEE market, with the exception of Slovenia. 

VIG Insurance Group signed a share purchase agreement 
with the Dutch company Aegon N.V. in November 2020 to 
acquire its companies in Hungary, Poland, Romania and 
Turkey. The European Commission granted approval in ac-
cordance with competition law on 12 August 2021. Hun-
gary is currently still prohibiting the acquisition by a foreign 
company. Management is still in a constructive dialogue 
with the Hungarian Ministry of Finance to clarify the pos-
sibilities for a positive conclusion of the acquisition.  

Due to the fact that there is still no foreseeable end to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, estimates of business development 
for the financial year 2021 are still highly uncertain. Taking this 
and current parameters into account, VIG Insurance Group 
expects premium volume to remain stable at the level of 
2020 and profit before taxes to be in the range of EUR 450 
to 500 million. The combined ratio is expected to remain at 
a sustainable level of around 95%. 

Business development in the second half of 2021 will be 
affected not only by the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and 
the great uncertainty about the further course and impact 
of the rapidly spreading delta variant but also by other 
storms and natural disasters, such as the flooding seen 
most recently in July 2021. Taking this and its prudent allo-
cation policy into account, VIG Insurance Group is confirm-
ing the outlook for 2021 with premium volume remaining 
stable at the level of 2020 and profit before taxes in the 
range of EUR 450 to EUR 500 million. The combined ratio 
is expected to sit at a sustainable level of around 95%. 

Current topics 

VIG Insurance Group initiates a new strategy programme 

The “VIG 25” strategic programme was developed and 
initiated together with the CEOs of the VIG insurance 
companies based on trends and developments in the insur-
ance industry. In addition to expanding its leading market 
position in the CEE region, including Austria, the programme 
also aims to create sustainable value and to achieve ESG-
related goals.  

Changes in the Managing Board 

The Supervisory Board of Vienna Insurance Group AG 
Wiener Versicherung Gruppe appointed Hartwig Löger as a 
member of the Vienna Insurance Group Managing Board 
for the period from 1 January 2021 to 30 June 2023. He 
contributes his 35 years of insurance experience and exten-
sive knowledge of the CEE region. The VIG Holding Manag-
ing Board has had the following 8 members since 1 January 
2021: Elisabeth Stadler (CEO), Liane Hirner (CFRO), Peter 
Höfinger, Gerhard Lahner (COO), Gábor Lehel (CIO), Hartwig 
Löger, Harald Riener and Peter Thirring (CTO). 

VIG Insurance Group joins the UN Global Compact 

Vienna Insurance Group AG Wiener Versicherung Gruppe 
joined the United Nations Global Compact, the world’s 
largest initiative for corporate responsibility and sustainabil-
ity, in March 2021. By joining, the VIG Group committed it-
self to the ten universal principles of the UN Global Compact 
in the areas of environmental protection, labour standards, 
human rights and anti-corruption and is already implement-
ing numerous measures in these areas. This makes the VIG 
Group one of the more than 13,000 companies worldwide 
that have joined this initiative. VIG Insurance Group is also 
committed to the UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 
and is actively promoting them in its area of influence.  

VIG share listings in sustainability indices 

VIG shares continue to be listed in the VÖNIX sustainability 
index for 2020/2021. They have been included since the 
year the index was launched in 2005. VÖNIX is the sustain-
ability benchmark of the Austrian stock market. It includes 
domestic companies listed on the Vienna Stock Exchange 
that are leaders with respect to environmental and social 
activities.  

VIG shares were also listed in the international “FTSE4Good” 
sustainability index starting in mid-2007. In June 2021, 
FTSE Russell announced that VIG shares would be re-
moved from the index. Although the ESG rating of VIG 
shares still exceeds the required threshold, due to its low 
market capitalisation, VIG Insurance Group was downgrad-
ed to a small cap company in March and was therefore no 
longer included in the FTSE All World index that forms the 
basis for the index series and only includes large and mid 
cap companies.  
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VIG Holding places a senior sustainability bond and improves 

its capital structure 

Based on the Group’s long-term capital planning and the 
interest rate situation, the Managing Board initiated capital 
optimisation measures for the Group. The focus was on ex-
panding investments in socially and environmentally sus-
tainable projects. Vienna Insurance Group AG Wiener 
Versicherung Gruppe placed a senior sustainability bond 
with a volume of EUR 500 million with domestic and foreign 
investors in March 2021. The senior sustainability bond will 
be redeemed after 15 years. A subordinated bond with a 
volume of EUR 300 million was also placed as a restricted 
tier 1 instrument with the principal shareholder Wiener 
Städtische Versicherungsverein. 

Weather-related claims 

In total, gross weather-related claims were around EUR 211 
million in the 1st half of 2021 (1st half of 2020: gross EUR 91 
million). VIG Insurance Group retained around EUR 98 million 
after reinsurance (1st half of 2020: EUR 76 million).  

Virtual Annual General Meeting 2021 

The 30th Annual General Meeting of Vienna Insurance Group 
AG Wiener Versicherung Gruppe was held virtually on 21 
May 2021. The Annual General Meeting approved the Man-
aging Board and Supervisory Board proposal to pay a divi-
dend of EUR 0.75 per share. This corresponds to a dividend 
payout ratio of 41.5% of the profit after taxes and non-
controlling interests. The dividend yield is 3.6%. Further in-
formation on the Annual General Meeting is available here: 
www.vig.com/annual-general-meeting  

VIG Group invests in the deeptech start-up scene 

Vienna Insurance Group AG Wiener Versicherung Gruppe 
holds an indirect investment in the venture capital fund IST 
cube (EuVECA) GmbH & Co KG (IST CUBE), which is based 
in Klosterneuburg, Lower Austria. IST CUBE provides fund-
ing for projects by start-ups that focus on Austria and have 
science-based innovations in the areas of science, engi-
neering and technology. 

VIG Group establishes VENPACE insurtech fund 

Vienna Insurance Group AG Wiener Versicherung Gruppe 
formed the VENPACE insurtech fund with three other investors. 

The goal is to search for, financially support and make use 
of young international technology companies. The focus is 
on insurtechs.  

AWARDS 

VIG Insurance Group once again included in the FORBES list  

of the largest public companies 

Vienna Insurance Group AG Wiener Versicherung Gruppe 
was included in the FORBES list of the 2000 largest public 
companies in the world for the first time in 2020. The VIG 
Group is included again in 2021. A total of nine Austrian 
companies made it into the Top 2000. The VIG Group rating 
as number 1,186 in the list makes it the top Austrian insur-
ance company. The rating is based on revenues, premium 
volume, net profit, volume of investments and market cap-
italisation. 

VIG Holding with top ranking in Gender Diversity Index 

In 2021, VIG Holding achieved second place in Austria in 
the 2020 Gender Diversity Index ranking by the Boston 
Consulting Group.  

Bulgarian Doverie is pension insurer of the year again 

The Bulgarian pension fund Doverie received the “Pension 
Insurer of the Year” award in the supplementary mandatory 
pension insurance category for the tenth time in a row in 
May 2021. The award is given each year by the Prof. Dr. 
Veleslav Gavriiski Foundation, the Association of Bulgarian In-
surance Companies, the Higher Insurance & Finance School, 
the Bulgarian Association of Supplementary Pension Insur-
ance Companies and the Bulgarian Association of Insurance 
Brokers.  

“losleben” app wins silver in the Digital Impuls Award 

The innovative losleben app of Austrian VIG insurance com-
pany Wiener Städtische received second place in the 
“Transformation” category during the “Digital Impuls Award” 
held by the “Die Presse” daily newspaper in June 2021. The 
“Digital Impuls Award” recognises innovations that trans-
form products and services, create clear competitive ad-
vantages, serve customers better and expand business 
models.  
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CAPITAL MARKETS 

International overview  

The 1st half of 2021 was favourable for international stock 
markets, as shown by the positive performance achieved 
by almost all stock exchanges and sectors. Equities were 
popular with investors. Wall Street soared from record to 
record, thanks to the multi-billion dollar economic programmes 
implemented by the US government and Federal Reserve. The 
stock market rally was also driven by the progress achieved 
in the fight against the pandemic. 

Most stock markets recorded double-digit price gains and 
record highs in the first six months of 2021. The global 
MSCI World equity index reached an interim all-time high in 
June, recording a gain of almost 12.2% in the 1st half of 
2021. The technology-oriented NASDAQ Composite Index 
and benchmark Dow Jones Industrial (DJI) index rose 
12.5% and 12.7%, respectively, in the first six months of 
2021. The S&P 500 also followed the upward trend in stock 
markets, gaining around 14.4% since the beginning of the 
year. The pan-European Eurostoxx 50 index ended the first 
half of the year 14.4% above its closing value for the pre-
vious year. The German DAX equity index recorded an in-
crease of around 13.2% in the first six months of 2021. The 
Eastern European CECE index, calculated in EUR, rose just 
as strongly to end the 1st half of 2021 with a gain of 14.2%. 

The STOXX Europe 600 sector index was somewhat weaker 
due to a loss of 6.2% in the 2nd quarter of 2021, but never-
theless managed to end the first six months of 2021 with 
an overall gain of 5.3%. Although the MSCI Emerging Mar-
kets Index recorded positive performance of 6.5%, this was 
also below the increase recorded by the MSCI World equity 
benchmark. 

Vienna Stock Exchange 

The Austrian benchmark index ATX, that suffered strongly 
from the economic collapse in the previous year, outper-
formed international stock markets. The Austrian stock 
market is now benefiting from the economic upswing, as is 
trading volume on the Vienna Stock Exchange, which 
reached EUR 38.9 billion in the first six months of this year, 

 the 250th anniversary year of the Vienna Stock Exchange. 
The ATX outperformed all of the developed markets with a 
gain of 22.4% in the 1st half of 2021. Including dividends, 
the ATX Total Return index rose 24.5% in the 1st half of the 
current year and reached an all-time high of 7,109.60 points 
on 14 June 2021. 

INVESTOR RELATIONS 

Due to the ongoing COVID-19 restrictions, events related to 
IR activities were also held virtually in the 1st half of 2021. 
Management took part in a total of eight telephone and 
videoconferences during the first six months of 2021 to 
inform existing and potential investors about current devel-
opments in the Group. In addition to virtual events by well-
known investment banks and research providers, such as 
Autonomous, Baader Bank, Erste Group, J.P. Morgan, 
Kepler Cheuvreux and RCB, the VIG Insurance Group also 
participated in the Insurance meets Capital conference calls 
by ABN AMRO Bank N.V. for the first time this year. The 
events and the presentation documents used there are 
available online at www.vig.com/events > Roadshows & 
Bank Conferences. In addition separate bond roadshow 
meetings were held with potential investors for the bond 
issue.  

More services for investors on the VIG Group website 

In addition to the Stock Price Ticker, Fact Sheet, Interactive 
Key Figures Tool and Share Price Monitor with Share Graph 
and Investment Calculator that were previously imple-
mented, a tool for calculating the Total Shareholder Return 
(TSR Tool) has also been available since April 2021. Go to 
vig.com > Investor Relations > Share > Dividend to see the 
dividend history and the total return including the annual 
dividend. The tool allows investors to calculate the total re-
turn on their individual investments.  

VIG SHARE PERFORMANCE 

VIG shares got off to a good start in 2021. They kept pace 
with the ATX at times and outperformed the sector indices 
until the beginning of March. Market participants were 
disappointed by the proposed dividend announced on 

Capital markets & investor relations & share 
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9 March 2021 and what was perceived as a very cautious 
outlook for 2021, causing a temporary interruption in the 
upward trend being followed by the shares. VIG shares 
largely recovered in subsequent days, but fell again on 19 
March 2021, the first major expiry date of the year. VIG 
shares rose again in the 2nd quarter of 2021, recording a gain 
of 4.8% to close at a price of EUR 23.15 on 30 June 2021. 
This corresponds to an increase of around 11.3% com-
pared to the beginning of the financial year. VIG shares 
reached their interim high of EUR 24.15 in the 1st half of the 
current year on 18 May 2021. On the editorial deadline of 
13 August 2021, VIG shares had a price of EUR 25.20. 

VIG financial calendar* 

Results for the 1st–3rd quarter 2021 18 November 2021 

* Preliminary schedule

Key share information for the 1st half of 2021 

in EUR 

High 24.150 
Low 20.800 
End-of-period price 23.150 
Market capitalisation (in EUR millions) 2,963.2 
Dividend 2020 0.75 
Book value per share* 34.38 

*The value is calculated using shareholders' equity less non-controlling interests and revaluation

reserve as well as hybrid capital. 

Overview of VIG shares 

Initial listing (Vienna) 17 October 1994 
Initial listing (Prague) 5 February 2008 
Number of common shares 128 million 
Free float around 28% 
ISIN AT0000908504 
Securities symbol VIG 
Bloomberg VIG AV / VIG CP 
Reuters VIGR.VI / VIGR.PR 
Rating – Standard & Poor’s A+, stable outlook 

VIENNA INSURANCE GROUP (VIG) COMPARED TO THE ATX AND STOXX EUROPE 600 INSURANCE INDEX 1 JANUARY 2021 TO 30 JUNE 2021 

Indexed (basis =100)

VIG ATX STOXX Europe 600 Insurance
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PRIMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

Assets Notes 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Intangible assets 1 1,739,988 1,733,077 
Right-of-Use assets 168,558 185,354 
Investments 2 34,561,630 34,901,186 

Property 2,536,830 2,507,413 
Owner-occupied property 476,271 477,469 
Investment property 2,060,559 2,029,944 

Shares in at equity consolidated companies 291,184 291,561 
Financial assets 31,733,616 32,102,212 

Financial investments for unit-linked and index-linked life insurance 8,367,439 7,968,039 
Reinsurers' share in underwriting provisions 3 1,548,013 1,396,492 
Receivables 4 1,806,886 1,699,159 
Tax receivables and advance payments out of income tax 182,067 275,041 
Deferred tax assets 234,605 136,728 
Other assets 403,639 387,845 
Cash and cash equivalents 2,972,357 1,745,147 
Total 51,985,182 50,428,068 

Liabilities and shareholdersʾ equity Notes 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Shareholders' equity 5 5,599,213 5,285,766 

Share capital and reserves 5,489,233 5,162,738 
Non-controlling interests 109,980 123,028 

Subordinated liabilities 1,460,779 1,463,909 
Underwriting provisions 6 32,614,290 32,230,055 
Underwriting provisions for unit-linked and index-linked life insurance 8,012,302 7,617,216 
Non-underwriting provisions 7 844,662 876,809 
Liabilities 8 2,736,317 2,254,306 
Tax liabilities out of income tax 309,091 290,998 
Deferred tax liabilities 267,668 267,870 
Other liabilities 140,860 141,139 
Total 51,985,182 50,428,068 

The numbers for the individual items in the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated income statement refer to detailed 
disclosures for these items in the “Notes to the consolidated balance sheet” section and the “Notes to the consolidated 
income statement” section starting on page 27 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Consolidated interim financial statements 
in accordance with IFRS  
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Consolidated income statement Notes 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

in EUR '000       

Net earned premiums – retention   4,822,628 4,738,622 

Premiums written – retention   5,106,212 4,947,004 

Premiums written – gross 9 5,772,935 5,577,364 
Premiums written – reinsurers´ share   -666,723 -630,360 

Change in unearned premiums – retention   -283,584 -208,382 

Change in unearned premiums – gross   -393,170 -332,273 
Change in unearned premiums – reinsurers´ share   109,586 123,891 

Financial result excl. result from shares in at equity consolidated companies 10 350,902 389,491 

Income from investments   579,548 691,936 
Expenses for investments and interest expenses   -228,646 -302,445 

Result from shares in at equity consolidated companies   2,698 -1,503 
Other income 11 80,768 99,640 
Expenses for claims and insurance benefits – retention 12 -3,633,534 -3,599,957 
Acquisition and administrative expenses 13 -1,237,099 -1,136,939 
Other expenses 11 -134,960 -288,190 
Result before taxes   251,403 201,164 

Taxes   -60,715 -68,538 
Result of the period   190,688 132,626 

thereof attributable to Vienna Insurance Group shareholders   186,332 126,350 
thereof non-controlling interests   4,356 6,276 

        
Earnings per share (annualised)* 5 2.91 1.97 
        
Result of the period (carryforward)   190,688 132,626 
    
*The undiluted earnings per share equals the diluted earnings per share (in EUR). 

 

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

in EUR '000     

Result of the period (carryforward) 190,688 132,626 

Other comprehensive income (OCI)     

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods 3,499 4,845 

+/- Underwriting gains and losses from provisions for employee benefits 6,262 8,445 
+/- Deferred profit participation -1,595 -1,998 
+/- Deferred taxes -1,168 -1,602 

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods -65,655 -232,821 

+/- Exchange rate changes through equity 39,151 -105,445 
+/- Unrealised gains and losses from financial instruments available for sale -358,282 -410,128 
+/- Cash flow hedge reserve -20 -11 
+/- Share of other reserves of at equity consolidated companies 475 1,471 
+/- Deferred mathematical reserve 118,991 34,431 
+/- Deferred profit participation 108,932 204,499 
+/- Deferred taxes 25,098 42,362 

Total OCI -62,156 -227,976 

Total profit 128,532 -95,350 

thereof attributable to Vienna Insurance Group shareholders 124,597 -97,607 
thereof non-controlling interests 3,935 2,257 
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CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Development Share 
capital 

Capital reserves Retained 
earnings 

Other reserves Subtotal* Non-
controlling 

interests 

Total 

Other Hybrid 
capital 

Currency 
reserve 

Other 

in EUR '000 

As of 1 January 2020 132,887 2,109,003 0 2,426,765 -133,088 538,547 5,074,114 116,579 5,190,693 

Changes in scope of conso-
lidation/ownership interests -13,106 0 0 -13,106 13,125 19 
Other comprehensive income 126,350 -103,904 -120,053 -97,607 2,257 -95,350

Other comprehensive income 
excluding currency changes -120,053 -120,053 -2,478 -122,531
Currency change -103,904 -103,904 -1,541 -105,445
Result of the period 126,350 126,350 6,276 132,626 

Dividend payment 0 0 0 -4,385 -4,385
As of 30 June 2020 132,887 2,109,003 0 2,540,009 -236,992 418,494 4,963,401 127,576 5,090,977 

As of 1 January 2021 132,887 2,109,003 0 2,484,899 -241,168 677,117 5,162,738 123,028 5,285,766 

Issuance of hybrid capital 300,000 0 300,000 300,000 
Changes in scope of conso-
lidation/ownership interests -2,102 0 0 -2,102 -1,542 -3,644
Other comprehensive income 186,332 38,271 -100,006 124,597 3,935 128,532 

Other comprehensive income 
excluding currency changes -100,006 -100,006 -1,301 -101,307
Currency change 38,271 38,271 880 39,151 
Result of the period 186,332 186,332 4,356 190,688 

Dividend payment 0 -96,000 -96,000 -15,441 -111,441
As of 30 June 2021 132,887 2,109,003 300,000 2,573,129 -202,897 577,111 5,489,233 109,980 5,599,213 

*The above subtotal equals the equity attributable to shareholders and other capital providers of the parent company. 

In view of the available capacities and the current favourable environment, a subordinated bond with a volume of 
EUR 300 million was issued as a restricted tier 1 instrument as defined in Solvency II in the first half of 2021. The subordinate 
bond therefore satisfies the IFRS criteria for a hybrid bond. The placement was made with the principal shareholder of 
Vienna Insurance Group, Wiener Städtische Versicherungsverein. 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

Additional information on the statement of cash flows 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

in EUR '000 

Received interest1 357,005 372,104 
Received dividends1 53,680 58,768 
Interest paid2 37,501 36,904 
Income taxes paid1 8,942 59,563 
1 Income tax payments, received dividends and received interest are included in the cash flow from operating activities.  
2 Interest paid result primarily from financing activities. 
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Change in cash and cash equivalents 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

in EUR '000 

Result of the period 190,688 132,626 

Change in underwriting provisions net 334,280 -170,263
Change in underwriting receivables and liabilities (incl. deposits on assumed reinsurance business) -244,047 -317,977
Change in other receivables and other liabilities (excl. leases) 225,896 191,173 
Change in financial assets recognised at fair value through profit and loss (incl. held for trading) -1,349 34,007 
Gain/loss from disposal of investments -45,141 -108,627
Appreciation/depreciation of investments 31,310 54,687 
Change in provisions for pensions and similar obligations and provisions for other employee benefits -8,201 -9,884
Change in deferred taxes -71,526 -70,995
Change in intangible assets 69,200 165,626 
Change in right-of-use assets and lease receivables and liabilities 3,468 -1,688
Change in other balance sheet items -40,050 -56,407
Other cash-neutral income and expenses1 -47,961 333,728 
Cash flow from operating activities 396,567 176,006 

Payments for the acquisition of at equity consolidated companies -931 0 
Cash inflow from the sale of available for sale financial assets 1,984,114 1,595,223 
Payments for the acquisition of available for sale finanical assets -1,732,708 -2,053,814
Cash inflow from disposals/repayments of held to maturity financial assets 45,573 117,638 
Payments for the acquisition of held to maturity financial assets -55,058 -33,497
Cash inflow from the sale of property 11,939 7,136 
Payments for the acquisition of property -51,903 -72,525
Cash inflow for the sale of intangible assets 722 951 
Payments for the acquisition of intangible assets -60,443 -55,480
Change in financial investments for unit-linked and index-linked life insurance 146,549 422,628 
Change of loans 109,024 -106,280
Change in other investments (excl. deposits on assumed reinsurance business) -220,789 46,081 
Cash flow from investing activities 176,089 -131,939

Cash inflows from the issuance of hybrid capital 300,000 0 
Cash outflows from subordinated liabilities -38,250 -34,491
Dividend payments -111,441 -4,385
Cash inflow from other financing activities 523,000 121,239 
Cash outflow from other financing activities -7,620 -14,585
Cash outflows from lease liabilities -13,429 -15,338
Cash flow from financing activities 652,260 52,440 

Change in cash and cash equivalents 1,224,916 96,507 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period2 1,745,147 1,443,358 
Change in cash and cash equivalents 1,224,916 96,507 
Change in the scope of consolidation 184 30,277 
Effects of foreign currency exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents 2,110 -12,004
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period2 2,972,357 1,558,138 

1 The non-cash income and expenses are primarily from exchange rate changes. 
2 The amount of cash and cash equivalents at the beginning and the end of period correlates with position cash and cash equivalents on the asset side and consists of cash on hand and overnight deposits. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The condensed consolidated interim financial statements for the 1st half of 2021 were prepared in accordance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union, and the applicable commercial law 
provisions of § 245a(1) of the Austrian Commercial Code (Unternehmensgesetzbuch – UGB) and Chapter 7 of the Austrian 
Insurance Supervision Act (Versicherungsaufsichtsgesetz – VAG). The IFRS accounting policies were the same as those 
used for the last financial statements in the previous financial year.  

Similarly, the estimates and discretionary assessments needed to prepare the consolidated financial statements were made 
in the same way. This does not include newly applicable or amended standards. 

Adoption of new standards and new interpretations 

The amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 that were applicable for the first time on 1 January 2021 
(IBOR Reform Phase 2) and amendments to IFRS 4 (deferral of first-time application of IFRS 9) had no or no material effect 
on these half-year financial statements. 

New standards and changes to current reporting standards 

New standards and changes to current reporting standards Applicable as of1 

Those already adopted by the EU 

IFRS 9 Financial assets 1.1.20182 
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative compensation 1.1.20192 
Amendments to IFRS 3 Changes to the references to the framework concept 1.1.2022 
IAS 37 Onerous contracts: costs of contract performance 1.1.2022 
all IFRS Annual improvements (2018–2020 cycle) 1.1.2022 
IAS 16 Income before qualified use 1.1.2022 
Those which are not or not yet adopted by the EU 

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts EU decided this standard shall not be 
transferred into EU law 

IFRS 17 incl. amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1.1.2023 
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture First-time application deferred for an 

indefinite period 
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1.1.2023 
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS 
Practice Statement 2 

Definition of materiality in connection with accounting policies 1.1.2023 

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of accounting estimates and distinguishing them from changes in accounting 
policies 

1.1.2023 

Amendments to IFRS 16 Rent reductions from 30 June 2021 in connection with COVID-19 1.4.2021 
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred taxes relating to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction 1.1.2023 
1 VIG insurance group is not planning early adoption of the standards listed in the table.  
2 The first time adoption for insurance companies can be delayed to 1 January 2023. 

IFRS 9 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND IFRS 17 – INSURANCE CONTRACTS 

For information on the project for implementing IFRS 9 and IFRS 17 in VIG Insurance Group, please see the Group Annual 
Report for 2020 starting on page 73. 
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Foreign currency translation 

Transactions and separate financial statements in foreign currencies were translated in the interim report for the 1st half of 
2021 as indicated on page 75 of the Group Annual Report for 2020. 

Currency End-of-period exchange rate Average exchange rate 

30.6.2021 31.12.2020 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

1 EUR ≙ 

Albanian lek ALL 122.6700 123.7000 123.2280 123.6714 
Bosnian convertible marka BAM 1.9558 1.9558 1.9558 1.9558 
Bulgarian lev BGN 1.9558 1.9558 1.9558 1.9558 
Georgian lari GEL 3.7608 4.0233 3.9993 3.3435 
Croatian kuna HRK 7.4913 7.5519 7.5504 7.5336 
Macedonian denar MKD 61.6950 61.6940 61.6355 61.6530 
Moldovan leu MDL 21.3989 21.1266 21.2921 19.4657 
Turkish new lira TRY 10.3210 9.1131 9.5226 7.1493 
Polish zloty PLN 4.5201 4.5597 4.5374 4.4120 
Romanian leu RON 4.9280 4.8683 4.9050 4.8173 
Swiss franc CHF 1.0980 1.0802 1.0946 1.0642 
Serbian dinar RSD 117.5660 117.5802 117.5761 117.5746 
Czech koruna CZK 25.4880 26.2420 25.8119 26.3333 
Ukraine hryvnia UAH 32.3018 34.7396 33.4936 28.6091 
Hungarian forint HUF 351.6800 363.8900 357.8797 345.2607 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION CONCERNING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

On 20 May 2020, the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) published a statement addressing the implications 
of the COVID-19 pandemic on IFRS interim reports. The statement focuses on transparency and consistent application of 
the European requirements for the information provided in consolidated interim financial statements in connection with 
COVID-19. Since the COVID-19 pandemic is still ongoing, the disclosures published in the 2020 annual financial statements 
were reviewed again for these interim financial statements. If no further information is provided below due to insignificant 
changes, please refer to the 2020 Annual Report. 

Insurance business 

PREMIUM DEVELOPMENT 

In the property lines of business, premiums written are showing a recovery towards the level prior to the COVID-19 
pandemic. Health insurance also continues to show an increase this year. VIG Insurance Group is focusing on this line of 
business and sees the COVID-19 pandemic as having a reinforcing effect on this fundamental focus. 

CLAIMS AND COST DEVELOPMENT 

The stable development of the claims ratio is due to a fundamentally better claims experience and lower recurrent claims 
and large losses, among other thing. It is still not possible to directly determine any positive effects of the COVID-19 
pandemic. More detailed discussions at the segment level can be found in the interim management report starting on page 4. 

The COVID-19 pandemic and decline in claims in the previous year led to an increase in reinsurance commissions, which 
were once again at the pre-COVID-19 level in the 1st half of 2021. 

UNDERWRITING PROVISIONS 

In the area of reserves for incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims, additional reserves were included due to an increase in 
expected late claim notifications and uncertainty about future developments. The Group subsidiaries are holding around 
EUR 140.0 million in provisions. The adequacy of the underwriting provisions is checked in detail each year as part of the 
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liability adequacy test during preparation of the consolidated financial statements. During the year, a comparison of the best 
estimate (after reinsurance) calculated based on Solvency II principles without taking into account transitional measures 
and the IFRS provisions (after reinsurance) showed a significant buffer of EUR 4.9 billion. As before, the IFRS provisions 
can therefore be considered adequate. 

UNDERWRITING RECEIVABLES 

The Group formed allowances for underwriting receivables at the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. Those allowances are 
now decreasing again. 

Investments 

MARKET RISK 

Depending on the purpose of the application, VIG Holding performs value-at-risk calculations for different sub-portfolios for 
VIG Insurance Group. Confidence levels vary between 95.0% and 99.5%, and the holding period varies from 20 to 250 
days. Due to the nature of the portfolio, interest rate and spread components make the largest contributions to value-at-
risk. As a plausibility check of the calculations, the value-at-risk for the most important sub-portfolios is determined using 
both the parametric method described above and the historical calculation method. 

The following table shows the value-at-risk (at a 99% confidence level) for financial instruments that are measured as 
available for sale or at fair value through profit or loss (incl. held for trading). 

Value-at-Risk 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR million 

10-day holding period 379.0 603.4 
20-day holding period 536.0 853.3 
60-day holding period 928.4 1,478.0 

DISCLOSURES ON SEASONAL AND ECONOMIC INFLUENCES 

Within VIG Insurance Group, seasonal fluctuations mainly occur in premiums, claims and the financial result. Due to the 
large number of insurance contracts beginning in January, the 1st half of the year is also normally the strongest in terms of 
premiums. In terms of claims, the 1st half also normally shows a higher level of charges, mainly due to adverse environmental 
influences (snow, snowmelt, storms, floods). Adverse weather events, such as storms, can also occur during the summer 
and autumn. With respect to the financial result, most of the dividend income occurs in the first half of the year. 

The 1st half of financial year 2021 was affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and was not subject to the full normal seasonal 
and economic influences. Therefore, please also see the “Important information concerning the COVID-19 pandemic” 
section for information on atypical developments starting on page 19. 

CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION 

Acquired companies are added to the scope of consolidation based on an internal Group guideline. The guideline includes 
quantitative thresholds and criteria. Detailed information is available in the Group Annual Report for 2020 starting on page 96. 
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Expansion of the scope of consolidation* Acquisition/formation Shares First time consolidation Method 

Date in % Date 

VIG Offices, s.r.o. 2020 100.00 1.1.2021 full consolidation 

*Unless indicated otherwise, no goodwill exists.

Change in significant minority interests Change Change of interest Change of non-
controlling interests 

Date in % in EUR '000 

Asirom 31.3.2021 0.06 -54
ČPP 30.6.2021 2.72 -3,893
SMARDAN 5 DEVELOPMENT S.R.L. 31.3.2021 0.01 0 
VIG Fund 30.6.2021 0.02 -44
V.I.G. ND, a.s. 30.6.2021 0.32 -287

On 29 November 2020, VIG Insurance Group reached agreement with Aegon N.V. to acquire its insurance business in 
Hungary, Poland, Romania and Turkey. Due to the lack of closing for the transaction and lack of control over the companies, 
they had not yet been added to the scope of consolidation as of the balance sheet date. The closing is still expected to 
take place in the 2nd half of 2021. 

Effect of the changes in the scope of consolidation 

Balance sheet Additions 

in EUR '000 

Intangible assets 1 
Investments 11,101 
Receivables (incl. tax receivables and advance payments out of income tax) 4 
Other assets (incl. deferred tax assets) 191 
Cash and cash equivalents 184 
Liabilities (incl. tax liabilities out of income tax) 983 
Other liabilities (incl. deferred tax liabilities) 39 

The figures shown in the table above reflect the actual dates of first consolidation, as shown in the expansion of the scope 
of consolidation table. 

Contribution to result before taxes in reporting period Additions 

in EUR '000 

Financial result excl. result from shares in at equity consolidated companies -220
Result before taxes -220

Including the new companies in the scope of consolidation did not change the number of employees. 

SEGMENT REPORTING 

The statements made in the Group Annual Report for 2020 are still valid and can be read starting on page 100 of that 
report. 
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Consolidated balance sheet by segment 

Assets Austria Czech Republic Slovakia 

30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Intangible assets 523,376 497,293 498,968 487,109 127,306 126,749 
Right-of-Use assets 72,489 75,523 55,295 57,583 6,671 6,837 
Investments 22,931,942 23,655,203 3,091,306 2,937,473 1,597,757 1,603,118 
Financial investments for unit-linked and index-linked life insurance 5,127,842 4,918,309 462,478 418,286 191,944 180,756 
Reinsurers' share in underwriting provisions 492,750 487,996 133,023 149,599 44,410 40,573 
Receivables 580,225 559,737 141,117 166,645 47,503 47,231 
Tax receivables and advance payments out of income tax 15,909 18,024 7,433 37,735 485 135 
Deferred tax assets 4,432 4,871 167,515 85,389 8,572 6,065 
Other assets 89,338 102,357 170,089 160,467 7,952 9,150 
Cash and cash equivalents 878,631 451,307 53,135 144,332 84,226 87,218 
Total 30,716,934 30,770,620 4,780,359 4,644,618 2,116,826 2,107,832 

Assets Poland Romania Baltic States 

30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Intangible assets 161,486 158,164 21,196 20,845 134,201 135,652 
Right-of-Use assets 4,858 5,466 3,295 3,642 7,790 8,872 
Investments 1,408,339 1,431,462 752,472 754,751 707,815 697,135 
Financial investments for unit-linked and index-linked life insurance 712,416 680,712 104,244 109,020 121,056 101,210 
Reinsurers' share in underwriting provisions 121,359 121,345 48,142 47,214 46,814 44,839 
Receivables 225,580 212,916 185,495 192,185 108,058 92,650 
Tax receivables and advance payments out of income tax 4,329 4,291 0 0 514 549 
Deferred tax assets 6,810 0 5,192 4,992 306 32 
Other assets 9,919 7,710 10,063 4,625 16,972 18,910 
Cash and cash equivalents 35,525 24,680 31,487 21,379 62,656 73,230 
Total 2,690,621 2,646,746 1,161,586 1,158,653 1,206,182 1,173,079 

Assets Hungary Bulgaria Turkey/Georgia 

30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Intangible assets 28,327 27,062 126,851 126,405 2,586 2,533 
Right-of-Use assets 2,975 2,820 2,606 2,555 437 605 
Investments 150,028 162,639 263,800 248,030 91,049 96,334 
Financial investments for unit-linked and index-linked life insurance 567,977 518,110 18,237 14,950 0 0 
Reinsurers' share in underwriting provisions 14,462 14,757 22,642 22,041 75,789 91,236 
Receivables 34,431 31,351 57,191 45,269 85,166 86,031 
Tax receivables and advance payments out of income tax 117 36 768 0 2,286 4,517 
Deferred tax assets 1,159 1,025 750 232 1,083 804 
Other assets 13,439 11,031 6,716 6,132 898 1,135 
Cash and cash equivalents 10,280 1,575 35,895 41,808 27,271 24,780 
Total 823,195 770,406 535,456 507,422 286,565 307,975 
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Liabilities and shareholders' equity Austria Czech Republic Slovakia 

30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Subordinated liabilities 339,200 342,950 21,579 20,959 0 0 
Underwriting provisions 22,224,095 22,446,551 2,968,010 2,792,390 1,325,939 1,281,092 
Underwriting provisions for unit-linked and index-linked life insurance 4,947,403 4,744,433 299,275 249,729 204,632 191,127 
Non-underwriting provisions 611,088 649,509 10,755 10,038 4,227 3,288 
Liabilities 712,063 679,644 334,742 414,588 95,782 102,332 
Tax liabilities out of income tax 213,678 255,222 77,013 20,479 1,325 2,012 
Deferred tax liabilities 193,883 188,113 5,912 5,700 19,397 25,605 
Other liabilities 63,700 73,880 6,533 3,300 5,263 3,257 
Subtotal 29,305,110 29,380,302 3,723,819 3,517,183 1,656,565 1,608,713 

Liabilities and shareholders' equity Poland Romania Baltic States 

30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Subordinated liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Underwriting provisions 1,349,457 1,275,020 686,319 660,413 700,957 666,167 
Underwriting provisions for unit-linked and index-linked life insurance 697,586 671,126 103,370 107,690 121,054 101,215 
Non-underwriting provisions 11,915 11,996 41,186 42,631 2,189 2,677 
Liabilities 155,913 154,361 88,445 94,931 90,234 91,774 
Tax liabilities out of income tax 2,054 1,715 512 1,415 439 836 
Deferred tax liabilities 25,873 22,458 835 911 2,567 2,202 
Other liabilities 18,544 16,299 7,166 8,542 5,377 4,759 
Subtotal 2,261,342 2,152,975 927,833 916,533 922,817 869,630 

Liabilities and shareholders' equity Hungary Bulgaria Turkey/Georgia 

30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Subordinated liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Underwriting provisions 206,179 174,913 271,788 250,467 237,214 232,695 
Underwriting provisions for unit-linked and index-linked life insurance 564,354 515,028 17,473 14,254 0 0 
Non-underwriting provisions 801 772 4,510 4,804 11,170 11,419 
Liabilities 26,314 39,500 36,104 31,873 25,407 44,044 
Tax liabilities out of income tax 418 333 1,109 211 1,584 3,467 
Deferred tax liabilities 296 275 1,140 937 636 188 
Other liabilities 5,122 3,577 15 21 583 566 
Subtotal 803,484 734,398 332,139 302,567 276,594 292,379 
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Assets Remaining CEE Other Markets Central Functions Total 

30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Intangible assets 43,801 42,740 2,277 1,963 69,613 106,562 1,739,988 1,733,077 
Right-of-Use assets 9,413 9,855 44 44 2,685 11,552 168,558 185,354 
Investments 1,102,455 1,093,226 727,964 726,665 1,736,703 1,495,150 34,561,630 34,901,186 
Financial investments for unit-linked 
and index-linked life insurance 34,794 33,708 1,018,785 986,176 7,666 6,802 8,367,439 7,968,039 
Reinsurers' share in underwriting 
provisions 21,509 16,503 4,788 4,953 522,325 355,436 1,548,013 1,396,492 
Receivables 105,799 87,696 15,109 15,128 221,212 162,320 1,806,886 1,699,159 
Tax receivables and advance payments 
out of income tax 916 400 26 25 149,284 209,329 182,067 275,041 
Deferred tax assets 3,775 2,176 526 246 34,485 30,896 234,605 136,728 
Other assets 15,709 14,514 5,359 5,844 57,185 45,970 403,639 387,845 
Cash and cash equivalents 39,637 30,254 70,612 63,990 1,643,002 780,594 2,972,357 1,745,147 
Total 1,377,808 1,331,072 1,845,490 1,805,034 4,444,160 3,204,611 51,985,182 50,428,068 

The investments included shares in at equity consolidated companies of EUR 149,409,000 in Austria (TEUR 150,862,000), 
EUR 29,531,000 in the Czech Republic (EUR 28,331,000), EUR 144,000 in Poland (EUR 143,000) and EUR 112,100,000 
in the Central Functions segment (EUR 112,225,000). 

Liabilities and shareholders' equity Remaining CEE Other Markets Central Functions Total 

30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Subordinated liabilities 0 0 0 0 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,460,779 1,463,909 
Underwriting provisions 1,108,356 1,095,516 718,331 701,821 817,645 653,010 32,614,290 32,230,055 
Underwriting provisions for unit-linked 
and index-linked life insurance 34,794 33,707 1,014,695 982,106 7,666 6,801 8,012,302 7,617,216 
Non-underwriting provisions 7,471 7,420 11,847 13,060 127,503 119,195 844,662 876,809 
Liabilities 47,148 41,804 33,340 34,675 1,090,825 524,780 2,736,317 2,254,306 
Tax liabilities out of income tax 1,371 931 1,331 414 8,257 3,963 309,091 290,998 
Deferred tax liabilities 3,242 2,563 395 1,095 13,492 17,823 267,668 267,870 
Other liabilities 20,843 18,217 1 1 7,713 8,720 140,860 141,139 
Subtotal 1,223,225 1,200,158 1,779,940 1,733,172 3,173,101 2,434,292 46,385,969 45,142,302 

Shareholders' equity 5,599,213 5,285,766 
Total 51,985,182 50,428,068 

Intrasegment transactions have been eliminated from the amounts indicated for each segment. As a result, the segment 
assets and liabilities cannot be netted to determine the segment shareholders’ equity. 
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Consolidated income statement by segment 

 
  Austria Czech Republic Slovakia Poland 

  1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 

in EUR '000                 

Premiums written – gross 2,279,722 2,316,169 945,552 879,534 367,455 383,232 640,720 590,520 
Net earned premiums – retention 1,651,395 1,712,068 694,397 656,555 285,197 300,357 480,654 453,491 
Financial result excl. result from 
shares in at equity consolidated 
companies 299,408 304,725 39,229 35,452 21,076 20,485 16,689 22,014 

Income from investments 387,099 445,490 50,871 80,377 23,252 22,854 23,684 31,956 
Expenses for investments and 
interest expenses -87,691 -140,765 -11,642 -44,925 -2,176 -2,369 -6,995 -9,942 

Result from shares in at equity 
consolidated companies 329 -2,819 1,300 560 0 0 0 0 
Other income 14,691 10,740 14,858 13,645 1,633 2,282 5,488 4,615 
Expenses for claims and insurance 
benefits – retention -1,489,369 -1,556,516 -441,268 -406,610 -199,429 -224,734 -339,048 -323,722 
Acquisition and administrative 
expenses -357,080 -335,372 -196,375 -159,237 -66,453 -58,230 -113,821 -100,117 
Other expenses -13,542 -28,855 -15,245 -32,354 -12,010 -11,343 -16,193 -20,776 
Result before taxes 105,832 103,971 96,896 108,011 30,014 28,817 33,769 35,505 

Taxes -29,340 -16,315 -24,798 -23,216 -7,345 -7,355 -7,109 -7,421 
Result of the period 76,492 87,656 72,098 84,795 22,669 21,462 26,660 28,084 
         
 

  Romania Baltic States Hungary Bulgaria 

  1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 

in EUR '000                 

Premiums written – gross 266,399 229,062 258,730 250,997 175,942 153,702 114,227 111,660 
Net earned premiums – retention 206,348 173,491 199,192 190,877 125,267 109,055 80,090 76,223 
Financial result excl. at equity 
consolidated companies 11,174 7,966 5,734 2,816 1,520 4,293 6,939 6,546 

Income from investments 13,666 11,436 7,355 5,358 2,053 5,237 15,293 14,229 
Expenses for investments and 
interest expenses -2,492 -3,470 -1,621 -2,542 -533 -944 -8,354 -7,683 

Result from shares in at equity 
consolidated companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Other income 4,784 5,860 3,231 2,163 5,367 5,944 654 1,189 
Expenses for claims and insurance 
benefits – retention -142,454 -112,403 -142,925 -132,582 -95,578 -83,582 -43,654 -41,555 
Acquisition and administrative 
expenses -62,433 -53,839 -49,086 -46,391 -20,334 -18,732 -26,534 -25,528 
Other expenses -7,865 -11,591 -6,214 -8,436 -11,173 -12,161 -3,591 -65,264 
Result before taxes 9,554 9,484 9,932 8,447 5,069 4,817 13,904 -48,389 

Taxes -1,746 -3,812 -1,286 -1,036 -1,310 -1,333 -1,200 -1,598 
Result of the period 7,808 5,672 8,646 7,411 3,759 3,484 12,704 -49,987 
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Turkey/Georgia Remaining CEE Other Markets 

1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 

in EUR '000 

Premiums written – gross 126,215 127,365 252,854 231,335 142,928 141,957 
Net earned premiums – retention 56,185 59,979 176,008 165,253 117,512 117,116 
Financial result excl. at equity consolidated companies 5,985 4,302 16,465 27,485 10,007 8,427 

Income from investments 7,826 5,296 21,828 23,659 10,937 10,114 
Expenses for investments and interest expenses -1,841 -994 -5,363 3,826 -930 -1,687

Result from shares in at equity consolidated companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Other income 8,995 4,372 3,697 3,409 16,720 17,697 
Expenses for claims and insurance benefits – retention -41,812 -38,788 -121,972 -120,122 -92,866 -92,949
Acquisition and administrative expenses -14,759 -13,777 -50,856 -47,984 -19,155 -9,029
Other expenses -8,936 -19,597 -8,001 -52,931 -15,682 -25,942
Result before taxes 5,658 -3,509 15,341 -24,890 16,536 15,320 

Taxes -1,331 -2,582 -2,776 -3,270 -5,215 -4,136
Result of the period 4,327 -6,091 12,565 -28,160 11,321 11,184 

Central Functions Consolidation Total 

1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 1.1.-30.6.21 1.1.-30.6.20 

in EUR '000 

Premiums written – gross 1,014,822 930,581 -812,631 -768,750 5,772,935 5,577,364 
Net earned premiums – retention 750,696 715,014 -313 9,143 4,822,628 4,738,622 
Financial result excl. at equity consolidated companies -81,400 -53,958 -1,924 -1,062 350,902 389,491 

Income from investments 46,665 69,129 -30,981 -33,199 579,548 691,936 
Expenses for investments and interest expenses -128,065 -123,087 29,057 32,137 -228,646 -302,445

Result from shares in at equity consolidated companies 1,069 756 0 0 2,698 -1,503
Other income 1,752 28,680 -1,102 -956 80,768 99,640 
Expenses for claims and insurance benefits – retention -488,291 -458,222 5,132 -8,172 -3,633,534 -3,599,957
Acquisition and administrative expenses -263,925 -264,596 3,712 -4,107 -1,237,099 -1,136,939
Other expenses -10,491 -4,557 -6,017 5,617 -134,960 -288,190
Result before taxes -90,590 -36,883 -512 463 251,403 201,164 

Taxes 22,741 3,536 0 0 -60,715 -68,538
Result of the period -67,849 -33,347 -512 463 190,688 132,626 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

1. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Composition 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000     

Goodwill 1,251,902 1,237,316 

Purchased insurance portfolios 17,801 19,491 

Other intangible assets 470,285 476,270 

Purchased software 388,570 401,463 

Other 81,715 74,807 

Total 1,739,988 1,733,077 
   

 

1.1. Goodwill 

Development 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000     

Acquisition costs 1,865,619 1,906,993 

Cumulative impairment as of 31.12. of previous years -628,303 -524,458 

Book value as of 31.12. of the previous year 1,237,316 1,382,535 

Exchange rate differences 14,586 -26,972 

Book value as of 1.1. 1,251,902 1,355,563 

Additions 0 1,809 

Impairments 0 -120,056 

Book value as of 30.6. respectively 31.12. 1,251,902 1,237,316 

Cumulative impairment as of 30.6. respectively 31.12. 627,359 628,303 

Acquisition costs 1,879,261 1,865,619 
   

 

The impairments in the previous year predominantly affected the Bulgaria (EUR 59,800,000), Croatia (EUR 45,017,000) and 

Georgia (EUR 12,518,000) CGU groups. 

2. INVESTMENTS 

Composition 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000     

Property 2,536,830 2,507,413 

Owner-occupied property 476,271 477,469 

Investment property incl. RoU-asset for building-rights 2,060,559 2,029,944 

Shares in at equity consolidated companies 291,184 291,561 

Financial assets 31,733,616 32,102,212 

Loans and other investments 3,530,677 3,417,208 

Other financial assets 28,202,939 28,685,004 

Total 34,561,630 34,901,186 
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2.1. Other financial assets 

Development Held to maturity (incl. 
reclassified) 

Available for sale Recognised at fair value through 
profit and loss* 

30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Acquisition costs 2,457,839 2,766,187 
Cumulative valuation as of 31.12. of the previous years -1,401 -2,486
Book value as of 31.12. of the previous year 2,456,438 2,763,701 25,983,431 25,148,103 245,135 332,997 

Exchange rate differences 49,595 -79,580 34,902 -111,320 1,234 -8,275
Book value as of 1.1. 2,506,033 2,684,121 26,018,333 25,036,783 246,369 324,722 

Reclassifications 0 0 0 -6 -8,347 -51,352
Additions 52,080 153,580 1,746,374 3,366,777 49,337 191,772 
Disposals/repayments -45,573 -425,388 -1,983,846 -2,713,913 -48,211 -177,909
Change in the scope of consolidation 0 44,125 -16,103 -42,324 0 -46,084
Changes in value recognised in profit and loss 0 0 0 6,689 5,090 4,009 
Changes recognised directly in equity 0 0 -317,227 397,925 0 0 
Impairments 0 0 -1,370 -68,500 0 -23
Book value as of 30.6. and 31.12. respectively 2,512,540 2,456,438 25,446,161 25,983,431 244,238 245,135 

Cumulative valuation as of 30.6. respectively 31.12. 2,133 1,401 
Acquisition costs 2,514,673 2,457,839 

*Including held for trading

The values shown for the change in the scope of consolidation for the available for sale category are primarily due to 
inclusion of the Slovakian company VIG Offices s.r.o. in the scope of consolidation and the downstream merger of VIG 
Offices 1, s.r.o. into VIG Offices, s.r.o. 

3. REINSURERS’ SHARE IN UNDERWRITING PROVISIONS

Composition 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Provision for unearned premiums 298,631 191,227 
Mathematical reserve 8,811 13,447 
Provision for outstanding claims 1,226,022 1,172,546 
Provision for profit-unrelated premium refunds 11,931 14,366 
Other underwriting provisions 2,618 4,906 
Total 1,548,013 1,396,492 
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4. RECEIVABLES 

Composition 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000     

Underwriting 1,176,305 1,015,400 

Receivables from direct insurance business 943,371 810,381 
from policyholders 733,201 622,939 
from insurance intermediaries 118,949 131,571 
from insurance companies 91,221 55,871 

Receivables from reinsurance business 232,934 205,019 
Non-underwriting 630,581 683,759 

Other receivables 630,581 683,759 
Total 1,806,886 1,699,159 
   
 

5. CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

5.1. Other reserves 

Composition 30.6.2021 

  Unrealised gains 
and losses 

Cash flow hedge 
reserve 

Underwriting 
gains and losses 
from provisions 

for employee 
benefits 

Share of other 
reserves of at 

equity 
consolidated 

companies 

Currency reserve Total 

in EUR '000             

Gross 2,755,440 -15 -414,482 423 -204,698 2,136,668 
+/- Exchange rate changes from financial 
      instruments available for sale 10,640         10,640 
+/- Deferred mathematical reserve -631,791         -631,791 
+/- Deferred profit participation -1,098,257 0 128,761     -969,496 
+/- Deferred taxes -234,676 0 70,361     -164,315 
+/- Non-controlling interests -12,806 0 3,497 16 1,801 -7,492 
Net 788,550 -15 -211,863 439 -202,897 374,214 
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Composition 31.12.2020 

Unrealised gains 
and losses 

Cash flow hedge 
reserve 

Underwriting 
gains and losses 
from provisions 

for employee 
benefits 

Share of other 
reserves of at 

equity 
consolidated 

companies 

Currency reserve Total 

in EUR '000 

Gross 3,112,919 5 -420,744 -52 -243,849 2,448,279 
+/- Exchange rate changes from financial 

 instruments available for sale 11,443 11,443 
+/- Deferred mathematical reserve -750,782 -750,782
+/- Deferred profit participation -1,207,189 0 130,356 -1,076,833
+/- Deferred taxes -259,774 0 71,529 -188,245
+/- Non-controlling interests -14,159 0 3,540 25 2,681 -7,913
Net 892,458 5 -215,319 -27 -241,168 435,949 

5.2. Earnings per share (annualised) 

1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

Result of the period in EUR '000 190,688 132,626 
Non-controlling interests in net result of the period in EUR '000 -4,356 -6,276
Result of the period less non-controlling interests in EUR '000 186,332 126,350 

Number of shares at closing date units 128,000,000 128,000,000 
Earnings per share (annualised)* EUR 2.91 1.97 

*The undiluted earnings per share equals the diluted earnings per share (in EUR).

6. UNDERWRITING PROVISIONS

Composition 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Provision for unearned premiums 2,119,140 1,711,489 
Mathematical reserve 21,897,172 22,243,792 

Guaranteed policy benefits 20,593,044 20,805,425 
Allocated and committed profit shares 672,337 687,585 
Deferred mathematical reserve 631,791 750,782 

Provision for outstanding claims 6,758,956 6,345,913 
Provision for premium refunds 1,782,431 1,871,416 

Profit-related premium refunds 314,883 317,907 
Profit-unrelated premium refunds 73,098 75,966 
Deferred profit participation recognised through profit and loss* 424,955 400,710 
Deferred profit participation recognised directly in equity* 969,495 1,076,833 

Other underwriting provisions 56,591 57,445 
Total 32,614,290 32,230,055 

*The deferred profit participation is solely due to the profit-related premium refund.
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7. NON-UNDERWRITING PROVISIONS 

Composition 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000     

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations 584,647 590,947 

Provision for pension obligations 481,638 485,620 
Provision for severance obligations 103,009 105,327 

Provisions for other employee benefits 53,171 55,072 
Other non-underwriting provisions 206,844 230,790 
Total 844,662 876,809 
   
 

8. LIABILITIES 

Composition 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000     

Underwriting 1,001,332 1,083,646 

Liabilities from direct business 784,218 890,430 
to policyholders 381,735 522,515 
to insurance intermediaries 233,554 248,045 
to insurance companies 168,929 118,362 
arising from financial insurance policies 0 1,508 

Liabilities from reinsurance business 191,165 153,668 
Deposits from ceded reinsurance business 25,949 39,548 

Non-underwriting 1,734,985 1,170,660 

Liabilities to financial institutions 356,125 325,267 
Other liabilities 1,378,860 845,393 

Total 2,736,317 2,254,306 
   
 

Development 30.6.2021 

Liabilities from financing activities Subordinated liabilities 
(including interest)1 

Liabilities to financial 
institutions 

Lease liabilities Financing liabilities2 

in EUR '000         

Book value as of 31.12. of the previous year 1,496,361 325,267 189,762 102,204 
Cash changes -38,250 28,076 -13,429 487,304 

Cash inflows 0 35,000 0 488,000 
Payments -3,750 -4,862 -13,429 -18 
Interest paid -34,500 -2,062 0 -678 

Non-cash changes 32,574 2,782 -1,948 2,332 

Additions 31,953 2,781 -3,620 1,924 
Disposals 0 0 -16 0 
Measurement changes 0 0 0 402 
Exchange rate differences 621 1 1,688 6 

Book value as of 30.6. 1,490,685 356,125 174,385 591,840 
     
1 The interest payable for subordinated liabilities is included in other liabilities. 
2 Contains derivative liabilities from financing liabilities and other financing liabilities 
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Development 31.12.2020 

Liabilities from financing activities Subordinated liabilities 
(including interest)1

Liabilities to financial 
institutions 

Lease liabilities Financing liabilities2

in EUR '000 

Book value as of 31.12. of the previous year 1,496,971 215,418 199,332 74,539 
Cash changes -64,518 103,795 -33,282 25,762 

Cash inflows 0 124,739 0 28,500 
Payments 0 -16,803 -33,282 -889
Interest paid -64,518 -4,141 0 -1,849

Non-cash changes 63,908 6,054 23,712 1,903 

Additions 64,614 6,055 26,415 2,303 
Disposals 0 0 -247 0 
Measurement changes 0 0 -16 -387
Exchange rate differences -706 -1 -2,440 -13

Book value as of 31.12. 1,496,361 325,267 189,762 102,204 

1 The interest payable for subordinated liabilities is included in other liabilities. 
2 Contains derivative liabilities from financing liabilities and other financing liabilities 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 

9. PREMIUMS WRITTEN

Premiums written 1.1.-30.6.2021 

Gross Motor own 
damage 

insurance 
(Casco) 

Motor third 
party liability 

insurance 

Other property 
and casualty 

insurance 

Life insurance 
– regular
premium

Life insurance 
– single

premium

Health 
insurance 

Total 

in EUR '000 

Austria 179,164 191,524 925,382 631,962 119,722 231,968 2,279,722 
Czech Republic 136,865 175,540 276,177 330,813 16,234 9,923 945,552 
Slovakia 54,422 78,002 61,615 98,096 73,336 1,984 367,455 
Poland 97,224 157,521 231,505 83,047 64,121 7,302 640,720 
Romania 95,163 44,213 61,680 24,070 32,465 8,808 266,399 
Baltic States 48,408 51,968 66,806 36,634 14,424 40,490 258,730 
Hungary 12,813 25,322 42,196 44,019 44,514 7,078 175,942 
Bulgaria 34,070 17,757 30,191 16,874 5,694 9,641 114,227 
Turkey/Georgia 23,852 15,672 67,823 0 0 18,868 126,215 
Remaining CEE 27,004 52,892 72,467 37,151 45,250 18,090 252,854 
Other Markets 0 0 69,438 43,441 30,049 0 142,928 
Central Functions 0 0 984,860 16,122 0 13,840 1,014,822 
Consolidation -812,631
Total 708,985 810,411 2,890,140 1,362,229 445,809 367,992 5,772,935 

Premiums written 1.1.-30.6.2020 

Gross Motor own 
damage 

insurance 
(Casco) 

Motor third 
party liability 

insurance 

Other property 
and casualty 

insurance 

Life insurance 
– regular
premium

Life insurance 
– single

premium

Health 
insurance 

Total 

in EUR '000 

Austria 172,395 191,789 901,069 638,073 187,832 225,011 2,316,169 
Czech Republic 122,469 157,596 255,320 318,632 16,840 8,677 879,534 
Slovakia 53,017 77,227 65,881 85,528 93,371 8,208 383,232 
Poland 95,800 145,168 210,217 84,326 48,056 6,953 590,520 
Romania 84,300 42,044 57,723 24,278 14,119 6,598 229,062 
Baltic States 45,120 60,091 64,086 33,010 12,663 36,027 250,997 
Hungary 10,721 23,130 40,988 42,847 30,596 5,420 153,702 
Bulgaria 31,047 15,977 33,539 17,759 3,754 9,584 111,660 
Turkey/Georgia 20,221 18,808 67,749 0 0 20,587 127,365 
Remaining CEE 25,586 49,351 65,441 37,304 38,269 15,384 231,335 
Other Markets 0 0 67,698 42,161 32,098 0 141,957 
Central Functions 0 0 904,067 12,869 0 13,645 930,581 
Consolidation -768,750
Total 660,676 781,181 2,733,778 1,336,787 477,598 356,094 5,577,364 
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10. FINANCIAL RESULT EXCL. RESULT FROM SHARES IN AT EQUITY CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES

Composition 1.1.-30.6.2021 

Austria Czech 
Republic 

Slovakia Poland Romania Baltic States Hungary 

in EUR '000 

Current income 326,414 39,323 20,776 11,756 10,862 4,882 1,816 
Income from appreciation 1,701 739 945 2,603 1 1,321 0 

thereof reduction in impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Gains from disposal of investments 32,654 7,643 775 5,530 2,617 1,083 181 
Other income 26,330 3,166 756 3,795 186 69 56 
Total income 387,099 50,871 23,252 23,684 13,666 7,355 2,053 

Depreciation of investment 24,297 2,376 1,187 771 728 574 36 
thereof impairment 1,370 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Exchange rate differences -133 1,753 -47 797 -698 -39 -8
Losses from disposal of investments 7,227 1,786 341 440 1 58 46 
Interest expenses 27,127 1,858 34 738 1,543 491 166 

Personnel provisions 1,926 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Interest expenses for liabilities to financial 
institutions 1,058 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Interest expenses for financing liabilities 131 0 0 0 0 38 0 
Interest expenses for subordinate liabilities 17,906 534 0 39 54 383 0 
Interest expenses for lease liabilities 890 362 25 47 22 43 56 
Other interest expenses 5,216 962 9 652 1,467 27 110 

Other expenses 29,173 3,869 661 4,249 918 537 293 

Managed Portfolio Fees 2,225 397 96 1,684 354 0 7 
Asset management expenses 26,755 1,377 563 1,958 552 470 286 
Other expenses 193 2,095 2 607 12 67 0 

Total expenses 87,691 11,642 2,176 6,995 2,492 1,621 533 
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Composition 1.1.-30.6.2021 

  Bulgaria Turkey/ 
Georgia 

Remaining 
CEE 

Other Markets Central 
Functions 

Consolidation Total 

in EUR '000               

Current income 1,985 7,826 16,868 10,390 41,868 -30,981 463,785 

Income from appreciation 241 0 61 52 5 0 7,669 

thereof reduction in impairment 0 0 26 52 0 0 78 

Gains from disposal of investments 342 0 4,688 248 3,390 0 59,151 

Other income 12,725 0 211 247 1,402 0 48,943 

Total income 15,293 7,826 21,828 10,937 46,665 -30,981 579,548 

                

Depreciation of investment 1,030 32 759 225 6,964 0 38,979 

thereof impairment 0 0 17 0 0 0 1,387 

Exchange rate differences -95 -411 3,122 -18 -7,204 53 -2,928 

Losses from disposal of investments 63 0 75 47 3,926 0 14,010 

Interest expenses 148 1,744 397 111 44,017 -29,110 49,264 

Personnel provisions 0 0 0 0 260 0 2,186 

Interest expenses for liabilities to financial 
institutions 0 0 0 0 1,899 0 2,957 

Interest expenses for financing liabilities 68 27 0 0 14,206 -12,793 1,677 

Interest expenses for subordinate liabilities 15 0 0 0 24,795 -11,210 32,516 

Interest expenses for lease liabilities 20 33 209 0 -24 -171 1,512 

Other interest expenses 45 1,684 188 111 2,881 -4,936 8,416 

Other expenses 7,208 476 1,010 565 80,362 0 129,321 

Managed Portfolio Fees 77 0 9 0 0 0 4,849 

Asset management expenses 7,076 457 887 532 79,243 0 120,156 

Other expenses 55 19 114 33 1,119 0 4,316 

Total expenses 8,354 1,841 5,363 930 128,065 -29,057 228,646 
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Composition 1.1.-30.6.2020 

Austria Czech 
Republic 

Slovakia Poland Romania Baltic States Hungary 

in EUR '000 

Current income 328,425 43,084 20,293 13,046 10,414 4,662 4,427 
Income from appreciation 23 977 258 3,125 75 374 0 

thereof reduction in impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Gains from disposal of investments 91,931 16,790 1,656 11,887 712 238 633 
Other income 25,111 19,526 647 3,898 235 84 177 
Total income 445,490 80,377 22,854 31,956 11,436 5,358 5,237 

Depreciation of investment 39,493 2,486 1,120 4,352 896 1,341 118 
thereof impairment 15,538 0 0 0 0 0 88 

Exchange rate differences -532 -4,612 9 -1,789 -616 6 188 
Losses from disposal of investments 3,107 22,713 286 1,597 204 190 202 
Interest expenses 27,537 3,368 64 1,972 2,201 482 101 

Personnel provisions 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Interest expenses for liabilities to financial 
institutions 1,066 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Interest expenses for financing liabilities 192 0 0 0 0 1 0 
Interest expenses for subordinate liabilities 17,979 525 0 268 54 383 0 
Interest expenses for lease liabilities 689 595 25 108 34 65 38 
Other interest expenses 5,611 2,248 39 1,596 2,113 33 63 

Other expenses 71,160 20,970 890 3,810 785 523 335 

Managed Portfolio Fees 2,304 407 66 1,132 329 21 79 
Asset management expenses 27,345 1,218 809 2,070 456 367 256 
Other expenses 41,511 19,345 15 608 0 135 0 

Total expenses 140,765 44,925 2,369 9,942 3,470 2,542 944 
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Composition 1.1.-30.6.2020 

  Bulgaria Turkey/ 
Georgia 

Remaining 
CEE 

Other Markets Central 
Functions 

Consolidation Total 

in EUR '000               

Current income 1,909 5,281 18,998 9,692 49,072 -33,199 476,104 

Income from appreciation 798 0 7 37 6,710 0 12,384 

thereof reduction in impairment 0 0 5 37 6,689 0 6,731 

Gains from disposal of investments 629 0 4,368 88 11,793 0 140,725 

Other income 10,893 15 286 297 1,554 0 62,723 

Total income 14,229 5,296 23,659 10,114 69,129 -33,199 691,936 

                

Depreciation of investment 1,596 42 1,180 873 13,574 0 67,071 

thereof impairment 0 0 391 648 6,860 0 23,525 

Exchange rate differences -22 -552 -6,673 23 26,943 -316 12,057 

Losses from disposal of investments 248 0 141 198 3,212 0 32,098 

Interest expenses 213 1,013 401 144 40,729 -31,821 46,404 

Personnel provisions 0 0 0 0 261 0 2,261 

Interest expenses for liabilities to financial 
institutions 0 0 0 0 1,557 0 2,623 

Interest expenses for financing liabilities 69 30 0 0 13,215 -12,927 580 

Interest expenses for subordinate liabilities 80 0 0 0 24,881 -11,519 32,651 

Interest expenses for lease liabilities 24 51 223 0 85 -225 1,712 

Other interest expenses 40 932 178 144 730 -7,150 6,577 

Other expenses 5,648 491 1,125 449 38,629 0 144,815 

Managed Portfolio Fees 124 0 8 0 0 0 4,470 

Asset management expenses 5,507 347 873 415 36,936 0 76,599 

Other expenses 17 144 244 34 1,693 0 63,746 

Total expenses 7,683 994 -3,826 1,687 123,087 -32,137 302,445 
        

 

11. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES 

Composition 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

in EUR '000     

Other income 80,768 99,640 

Underwriting 57,955 53,814 

Non-underwriting 22,813 45,826 

Other expenses 134,960 288,190 

Underwriting 95,906 126,404 

Non-underwriting 39,054 161,786 
   

 

The decrease in non-underwriting expenses is due to the goodwill impairment performed in the previous year. For more 

information see Note 1 “Intangible assets” starting on page 27. 
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12. EXPENSES FOR CLAIMS AND INSURANCE BENEFITS

Composition 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

in EUR '000 

Expenses for claims and insurance benefits – gross 3,918,499 3,828,643 

Payments for claims and insurance benefits 3,892,148 3,911,976 
Changes in the provision for outstanding claims 371,341 293,387 
Change in mathematical reserve -423,100 -462,803
Change in other underwriting provisions -3,950 8,478 
Expenses for profit-related and profit-unrelated premium refunds 82,060 77,605 

Expenses for claims and insurance benefits – reinsurers´ share -284,965 -228,686

Payments for claims and insurance benefits -204,933 -247,389
Changes in the provision for outstanding claims -72,053 26,433 
Change in mathematical reserve -249 2,402 
Change in other underwriting provisions 2,316 523 
Expenses for profit-unrelated premium refunds -10,046 -10,655

Expenses for claims and insurance benefits – retention 3,633,534 3,599,957 

Payments for claims and insurance benefits 3,687,215 3,664,587 
Changes in the provision for outstanding claims 299,288 319,820 
Change in mathematical reserve -423,349 -460,401
Change in other underwriting provisions -1,634 9,001 
Expenses for profit-related and profit-unrelated premium refunds 72,014 66,950 

13. ACQUISITION AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Composition 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

in EUR '000 

Acquisition expenses 1,101,961 1,003,900 

Commission expenses* 796,245 706,161 
Pro rata personnel expenses 186,004 180,835 
Pro rata material expenses 119,712 116,904 

Administrative expenses 235,358 224,346 

Pro rata personnel expenses 114,553 112,335 
Pro rata material expenses 120,805 112,011 

Reinsurance commissions -100,220 -91,307
Total 1,237,099 1,136,939 

*Includes commissions of EUR 746,709,000 (EUR 663,548,000) for direct insurance business.
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES 

14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY

Information on the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments is provided in the section titled “Financial 
instruments and risk management” in the Group Annual Report for 2020 starting on page 107. 

Fair values and book values of financial instruments and investments 

Fair values and book values of financial instruments and investments 30.6.2021 

Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value 

in EUR '000 

Property1 2,536,830 0 61,898 4,227,910 4,289,808 

Owner-occupied property 476,271 0 26,244 780,023 806,267 
Investment property excl. RoU-asset for building-rights 2,060,559 0 35,654 3,447,887 3,483,541 

Shares in at equity consolidated companies 291,184 291,184 

Loans 2,463,715 246,084 2,410,656 69,992 2,726,732 

Loans 1,567,434 176,553 1,423,143 56,820 1,656,516 
Reclassified loans 121,076 44,397 100,403 0 144,800 
Bonds classified as loans 775,205 25,134 887,110 13,172 925,416 

Other financial assets 28,202,939 23,402,775 4,334,866 753,877 28,491,518 

Financial assets held to maturity 2,211,332 1,864,523 565,763 9,090 2,439,376 
Financial assets reclassified as held to maturity 301,208 344,887 16,856 0 361,743 
Financial assets available for sale 25,446,161 21,069,486 3,700,613 676,062 25,446,161 
Financial assets recognised at fair value through profit and loss2 244,238 123,879 51,634 68,725 244,238 

Other investments 1,066,962 1,066,962 

Financial investments for unit-linked and index-linked life insurance 8,367,439 8,367,439 8,367,439 

Subordinated liabilities 1,460,779 0 1,619,626 21,432 1,641,058 

Liabilities to financial institutions 356,125 356,125 

Financing liabilities3 591,417 591,417 

1 The market values are derived from internal and external expert reports. 
2 Including held for trading 
3 Not including lease liabilities and derivative liabilities 
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Fair values and book values of financial instruments and investments 31.12.2020 

Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value 

in EUR '000 

Property1 2,507,413 0 63,132 4,127,729 4,190,861 

Owner-occupied property 477,469 0 27,210 769,443 796,653 
Investment property excl. RoU-asset for building-rights 2,029,944 0 35,922 3,358,286 3,394,208 

Shares in at equity consolidated companies 291,561 

Loans 2,566,884 162,320 2,615,357 102,552 2,880,229 

Loans 1,647,782 76,214 1,610,950 85,860 1,773,024 
Reclassified loans 136,308 59,988 97,855 5,000 162,843 
Bonds classified as loans 782,794 26,118 906,552 11,692 944,362 

Other financial assets 28,685,004 23,919,022 4,424,592 734,347 29,077,961 

Financial assets held to maturity 2,163,435 1,924,912 544,108 10,825 2,479,845 
Financial assets reclassified as held to maturity 293,003 352,601 16,949 0 369,550 
Financial assets available for sale 25,983,431 21,517,902 3,806,396 659,133 25,983,431 
Financial assets recognised at fair value through profit and loss2 245,135 123,607 57,139 64,389 245,135 

Other investments 850,324 850,324 

Financial investments for unit-linked and index-linked life insurance 7,968,039 7,968,039 7,968,039 

Subordinated liabilities 1,463,909 1,615,767 21,036 1,636,803 

Liabilities to financial institutions 325,267 325,267 

Financing liabilities3 102,189 102,189 

1 The market values are derived from internal and external expert reports. 
2 Including held for trading 
3 Not including lease liabilities and derivative liabilities 

The measurement process and reclassification of financial instruments 

For information on the measurement process and reclassification of financial instruments, please see Note 22 “Financial 
instruments and fair value measurement hierarchy” in the Group Annual Report for 2020 starting on page 169. 

Measurement hierarchy – Financial instruments recognised at fair value 

Measurement hierarchy 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

Financial instruments recognised at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

in EUR '000 

Financial assets 

Financial assets available for sale 21,069,486 3,700,613 676,062 21,517,902 3,806,396 659,133 

Bonds 18,250,629 3,589,727 265,109 18,893,447 3,709,909 292,349 
Shares and other participations 424,721 3,867 318,569 372,249 3,636 296,400 
Investment funds 2,394,136 107,019 92,384 2,252,206 92,851 70,384 

Financial investments for unit-linked and index-linked life 
insurance 8,367,439 7,968,039 

The unrealised effect on the result (net profit or loss) from Level 3 financial instruments that are still in the portfolio and whose 
fair value is recognised in the income statement was EUR 903,000 during the reporting year (EUR -1,537,000). 
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Unobservable input factors 

Asset class Measurement methods Unobservable input factors Range 

Property Market value Capitalisation rate 0.88%–7.50% 
Rental income 3.000 EUR–3.765,000 EUR 
Land prices 0 EUR–8.000 EUR 

Discounted Cash flow Capitalisation rate 3.55%–8.11% 
Rental income EUR 96.000–EUR 6.275,000 

Building rights Capitalisation rate 3.00%–4.00% 
Rental income EUR 76.000–EUR 1.652,000 
Land prices EUR 250.000–EUR 500.000 
Construction interest actually paid 0.2%–5.7% 

Financial assets available for sale Hull-White present value method Spreads -0.09%–4.13%

Sensitivities 

With respect to the value of shares measured using a Level 3 method (multiples approach), the VIG Insurance Group 
assumes that alternative inputs and alternative methods do not lead to significant changes in value. 

The spread assumption is the critical factor for the changes in value of Level 3 measured bonds in the “Financial instruments 
available for sale” category and the sensitivity to this factor is of particular interest as a result. The most important bonds 
measured using a Level 3 method in the “Financial instruments available for sale” category are held by the Austrian, Czech 
and Polish companies and show the following sensitivities: 

Financial assets available for sale - bonds Fair value 

in EUR '000 

Fair value at 30.6.2021 265,108 
Spread +50bp -3,899
Effect on the income statement 0 
Effect on the statement of comprehensive income -3,899

The following sensitivities result from calculations using the Solvency II partial internal model: 

Property Fair value 

in EUR '000 

Fair value at 30.6.2021 3,872,741 
Rental income -5% 3,733,179 
Rental income +5% 4,018,903 
Capitalisation rate -50bp 4,117,617 
Capitalisation rate +50bp 3,669,890 
Land prices -5% 3,839,928 
Land prices +5% 3,913,079 

Since property is measured at cost in the Group balance sheet, negative sensitivities would only affect the income statement 
if property value fell below book value. There was no effect on other comprehensive income. 
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Reconciliation of financial assets and liabilities 

Please refer to Note 10 “Financial result excl. result from shares in at equity consolidated companies” starting on page 34 
for information on the effects of changes in value recognised in profit and loss. 

Development 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

Financial assets available for sale Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

in EUR '000 

Fair value at 31.12. of the previous year 21,517,902 3,806,396 659,133 21,011,483 3,476,413 660,207 

Exchange rate differences 29,136 5,357 409 -102,154 -5,287 -3,879
Fair value at 1.1. 21,547,038 3,811,753 659,542 20,909,329 3,471,126 656,328 

Reclassification between securities categories 0 0 0 0 0 -6
Reclassification to Level 9,332 39,920 29,715 36,688 135,265 44,850 
Reclassification from Level -55,017 -12,257 -11,693 -130,840 -56,090 -29,873
Additions 1,331,589 339,950 74,835 2,751,042 518,759 96,976 
Disposals -1,487,652 -441,222 -54,972 -2,327,967 -320,465 -65,481
Change in the scope of consolidation 0 0 -16,103 0 0 -42,324
Changes in value recognised in profit and loss 0 0 0 6,689 0 0 
Changes recognised directly in equity -275,798 -37,387 -4,042 332,084 58,483 7,358 
Impairments -6 -144 -1,220 -59,123 -682 -8,695
Fair value at 30.6. respectively 31.12. 21,069,486 3,700,613 676,062 21,517,902 3,806,396 659,133 

Development of financial liabilities assigned to Level 3 Subordinated liabilities 

30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000 

Fair value at 31.12. of the previous year 21,036 21,317 

Exchange rate differences 619 -674
Fair value at 1.1. 21,655 20,643 

Reclassification to Level 3 0 0 
Reclassification from Level 3 0 0 
Changes in value recognised in profit and loss -223 393 
Changes recognised directly in equity 0 0 
Fair value at 30.6. respectively 31.12. 21,432 21,036 

15. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Employee statistics 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

Number 

Field staff 13,172 13,450 
Office staff 12,344 12,230 
Total 25,516 25,680 

The employee figures shown are average values based on full-time equivalents. 
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties 

Related parties are the affiliated companies, joint ventures and associated companies listed in Note 26 “Affiliated companies 
and participations” starting on page 178 in the Group Annual Report for 2020. In addition, the members of the Managing 
Board and Supervisory Board of VIG Holding also qualify as related parties. Wiener Städtische Versicherungsverein directly 
and indirectly holds around 72.47% (around 72.47%), and therefore a majority of the voting rights of VIG Holding. Based 
on this controlling interest, it and the members of its Managing Board and Supervisory Board are therefore also related 
parties.  

Information on the compensation plan for Managing Board members is provided in Note 23 “Number of employees and 
personal expenses” starting on page 175 of the Group Annual Report for 2020. 

Members of the Managing Board and Supervisory Board did not receive any advances or loans and had no loans 
outstanding during the reporting periods.  

There were also no guarantees outstanding for members of the Managing Board or Supervisory Board during the reporting 
periods.  

Transactions with Wiener Städtische Versicherungsverein 

Wiener Städtische Versicherungsverein is VIG Holding’s principal shareholder. It has the legal form of a mutual insurance 
association that has spun off its insurance operations under the Austrian Insurance Supervision Act (VAG) and consequently 
has no insurance business operations. Due to the outsourcing to Wiener Städtische Versicherung AG that took place at 
that time, its only responsibilities are those as a majority shareholder of VIG Holding, so that intercompany charges within 
VIG Insurance Group are of minor importance. They are based on service agreements between VIG Insurance Group and 
Wiener Städtische Versicherungsverein for intercompany charges for internal audit services, finance and accounting, 
provision of staff and office leases based on the arm’s length principle. 

Wiener Städtische Versicherungsverein also holds VIG Holding hybrid bonds and subordinated liabilities with a nominal 
value of EUR 440 million. 

Transactions with related companies 

Transactions with non-consolidated affiliated and associated companies mainly relate to financing and charges for services. 



 

44 Half-year financial report 2021  

 

Open items with related companies 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000     

Loans 214,318 163,279 

Associated companies 154,989 101,375 

Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements 59,329 61,904 

Receivables 183,029 227,592 

Parent company 143,827 208,982 

Associated companies 28,392 5,012 

Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements 10,810 13,598 

Liabilities 232,641 272,252 

Parent company 211,068 255,508 

Associated companies 8,761 1,989 

Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements 12,812 14,755 
   

 
Transactions with related companies 30.6.2021 31.12.2020 

in EUR '000     

Loans 8,462 19,447 

Associated companies 2,917 11,131 

Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements 5,545 8,316 

Receivables 49,524 71,281 

Parent company 11,303 45,414 

Associated companies 29,294 9,307 

Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements 8,927 16,560 

Liabilities 145,798 225,298 

Parent company 46,162 55,127 

Associated companies 31,829 47,254 

Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements 67,807 122,917 
   

 

The transactions do not include changes in open items resulting from a change in the scope of consolidation. 

Transactions with related parties 

The amounts for related person open items, transactions and income statement items are insignificant. 

17. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

Heavy rain leading to flooding in Western and Central Europe 

The storms that occurred in Europe in the middle of July affected a number of countries where the VIG Insurance Group 

operates, including Austria, Croatia, the Czech Republic, Germany, Hungary, Romania and Slovakia. The rainfall was highly 

localised in some cases and led to a very rapid rise in water levels and associated flooding. Although by the editorial 

deadlineit is impossible to give a reliable indication of the losses the VIG Insurance Group will have to cover, they run into 

the millions. 
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AUSTRIAN INSURANCE SUPERVISION ACT (VAG) 

GROSS PREMIUMS WRITTEN PER BALANCE SHEET UNIT (INCL. CONSOLIDATION EFFECTS) 

Property and casualty insurance 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

in EUR '000     

Direct business 3,442,506 3,290,847 

Casualty insurance 213,154 217,150 
Health insurance 56,244 53,939 
Motor own damage insurance (Casco) 708,985 660,676 
Rail vehicle own-damage 1,925 1,712 
Aircraft own-damage insurance 3,842 3,040 
Sea, lake and river shipping own-damage insurance 7,966 7,852 
Transport insurance 35,966 34,207 
Fire and natural hazards insurance 701,086 678,885 
Other property 357,826 332,141 
Third party liability insurance for self-propelled land vehicles 810,411 781,181 
Carrier insurance 14,609 13,913 
Aircraft liability insurance 4,256 3,105 
Sea, lake and river shipping liability insurance 2,576 1,887 
General liability insurance 339,585 316,418 
Credit insurance 4,027 2,440 
Guarantee insurance 21,710 24,244 
Insurance for miscellaneous financial losses 83,808 78,729 
Legal expenses insurance 33,846 33,357 
Assistance insurance, travel health insurance 40,684 45,971 

Indirect business 232,246 189,555 

Marine, aviation and transport insurance 10,195 8,560 
Other insurance 208,084 167,265 
Health insurance 13,967 13,730 

Total 3,674,752 3,480,402 
   
 

Life insurance 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

in EUR '000     

Regular premium - direct business 1,342,152 1,320,166 
Single-premium - direct business 443,377 475,946 
Direct business 1,785,529 1,796,112 

thereof policies with profit participation 730,152 742,583 
thereof policies without profit participation 275,987 233,804 
thereof unit-linked life insurance portfolio 778,237 817,657 
thereof index-linked life insurance portfolio 1,153 2,068 

Indirect business 14,998 12,847 

Total 1,800,527 1,808,959 
   
 

Health insurance 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

in EUR '000     

Direct business 297,656 288,003 
Total 297,656 288,003 
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KEY FIGURES PER BALANCE SHEET UNIT 

1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 

Property/ 
Casualty 

Life Health Total Property/ 
Casualty 

Life Health Total 

in % 

Cost ratio 32.22 19.00 15.75 26.44 31.68 17.73 15.41 25.52 
Claims ratio 62.97 63.82 
Combined Ratio 95.19 95.50 
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We declare to the best of our knowledge that the consolidated interim financial statements prepared in accordance with 

applicable accounting standards give a true and fair view of the Group’s net assets, financial position and results of 

operations, the interim management report gives a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of 

operations of the Group with regard to the most important events during the first six months of the financial year and their 

impact on the consolidated interim financial statements, of the principal risks and uncertainties for the remaining six months 

of the financial year and material related party transactions to be disclosed. The interim report was not fully audited or 

reviewed by an auditor. 

Vienna, 13 August 2021 

The Managing Board: 

    

Elisabeth Stadler 

General Manager (CEO), 

Chairwoman of the Managing 

Board 

Liane Hirner 

CFRO, Member of 

the Managing Board 

Peter Höfinger 

Member of  

the Managing Board 

Gerhard Lahner 

COO, Member of 

the Managing Board 

    

Gábor Lehel 

CIO, Member of 

the Managing Board 

Hartwig Löger 

Member of  

the Managing Board 

Harald Riener 

Member of  

the Managing Board 

Peter Thirring 

CTO, Member of 

the Managing Board 

 

Managing Board areas of responsibility: 

Elisabeth Stadler: Management of the VIG Group, General Secretariat and Legal, Affiliated companies department, European Affairs, Communications 

& Marketing, Sponsoring, Bancassurance and international partnerships, Human Resources; Country responsibilities: Germany 

Liane Hirner: Finance and Accounting, Enterprise Risk Management, Asset-Risk Management, Digitalisation Finances and Risk; Country 

responsibilities: Liechtenstein 

Peter Höfinger: Corporate and large customer business, Vienna International Underwriters (VIU), Reinsurance; Country responsibilities: Albania, 

Bosnia-Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Kosovo, Croatia, Moldova, Montenegro, North Macedonia, Romania, Serbia 

Gerhard Lahner: Data Management & Processes, Group IT-Functions, Holding IT, Asset Management, Real Estate, Treasury, Asset Liability 

Management, Country responsibility: Georgia 

Gábor Lehel: Digital Transformation, Eco-systems & Platforms; Country responsibility: Belarus 

Hartwig Löger Strategy and Development, Planning and Controlling; Country responsibilities: Austria, Slovakia, Czech Republic, Hungary 

Harald Riener: Customer Experience, Assistance; Country responsibilities: Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania, Poland, Ukraine 

Peter Thirring: Non-Life Insurance, Life & Health Insurance, Actuarial Department; Country responsibility: Turkey 

 

The Managing Board as a whole is responsible for Compliance, Internal Audit and Investor Relations. 

Declaration by the Managing Board 



 

48 Half-year financial report 2021  

 

NOTICE 

This report includes forward-looking statements based on 

current assumptions and estimates that were made by the 

management of VIENNA INSURANCE GROUP AG Wiener 

Versicherung Gruppe to the best of its knowledge. Dis-

closures using the words “expected”, “target” or similar for-

mulations are an indication of such forward-looking state-

ments. Forecasts related to the future development of the 

Company are estimates made on the basis of information 

available as of the date this interim report went to press. 

Actual results may differ from the forecasts if the as-

sumptions underlying the forecast prove to be wrong or if 

unexpectedly large risks occur. 

Calculation differences may arise when rounded amounts 

and percentages are summed automatically. 

The condensed half-year financial report was prepared with 

great care to ensure that all information is complete and 

accurate. The possibility of rounding, typesetting or printing 

errors, however, cannot be ruled out completely. 

It should be understood that the text always refers to 

women and men equally without discrimination. 

 

The condensed half-year financial report can be down-

loaded as a PDF file in German or English from our website 

at: www.vig.com/downloads. 

Editorial deadline: 13 August 2021 

 

In case of doubt, the German version is authoritative. 
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